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Plaintiff, 

v. 

DANIEL CHAM, and' 
TRACY TOWNSEND, 

aka "Milton Turner," 
aka "Michael Russo," 
aka "Jim Pruitt," 
aka "Thomas Sullivan, ii 
aka "Heney Richards," 
aka "Jason Harper," 
aka "Jeffrey Pratt," 
aka "Stephen Fisher," 
aka "David.Stanton," 
aka "Davy Thomas," 
aka "Ryan Tupper," 
aka "Dell Shields," 
aka "Brandon Clark,,, 
aka "Leonard Jones," 
aka "Mark Parker," 
aka "Stanley David," 
aka "Jacob Zalman," 
aka "Shawn Miller," 
aka "Gilbert Ives," 
aka "James Johnson," 

.aka "Kenny Pierce," 
aka "Jonathan Beals," 
aka "Brian Carter," 
aka "Erik Sommers," 

Defendants. 

!!!gf.Q!!'.J.~N! 

[21 u.s.c. §§ 841(a) (1), 
. (b) (1.) (Cl, {b) (l) (E), and 
{b) {2) : Distribution and 
Possession with Intent to 
Distribute OXycodone, 
Hydrocodone, Alprazolam, and 
Carisoprodol; 18 u.s.c. 
§ 1956 (a) (1) (BJ ( i J ·, Money 
Laundering; 21. u.s.c. 
§ 843(a) (4) (A): False and 
Fraudulent Information in·an 
Application to Renew a DEA 
Registration Number; 1.8 u.s.c. 
§ 1001(a) (2): False Statement 
to a Federal Officer or Agency; 
:n u.s.c. § 843(a) (3): 
Acquiring a Controlled 
Substance by Misrepresentation, 
Fraud, Forgery, Deception; or 
Subterfuge; 1.8 u.s.c. § 2(a): 
Aiding ana Abetting; 21 U.S.C. 
§ 853 and 1.8 u.s.c. 
§ 962(a) (1.): Criminal 
Forfeiture] :i 
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l The Grand Jury charges : 

2 COUNTS ONE and TWO 

3 {21 u.s.c. §§ 841 {a) (l), (b) (1) (C) J 

4 on or about the following dates, in Los Angeles County, 
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within the Central District of California, and elsewhere, 

defendant DANIEL CHAM, then a physician licensed to practice 

medicine in the State of California, while acting and intending 

to act outside the usual course of professional practice and 

without a legitimate medical purpose, knowingly and 

intentionally prescribed and distributed oxycodone, a Schedule 

II narcotic dru.g controlled substance: 

COUNT 

ONE 

TWO 

DATE 

March 9, 2014 

April 13, 2014 
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1 COUNT THREE 

2 [21 U.S .C. §§ 841 (a) (1), (b) (1) (E) J 

3 On or about February 16, 2014, in Los Angeles County, 

4 within the Central District of California, and elsewhere, 

5 defendant DANIEL CHAM, then a physician licensed to practice 

6 medicine in the State of California, while act1ng and intending 

7 to act outside the usual course of professional practice and 

8 without a legitimate medical purpose, l~nowingly and 

9 inte:11,tionally prescribed and distributed hydrocodone, a Schedule 

10 III narcotic drug controlled substance. 
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1 COUNTS FOUR through SIX 

· 2 [21 u.s.c. §§ S41(a) (1), (bl (2)) 

3 On or about the following dates, in Los Angeles County, 

4 within the Central District of California, and elsewhere, 

5 defendant DANIEL CHAM, then a physician licensed to practice 

6 medicine in the State of California, while acting and intending 

7 to act outside the usual course of professional practice and 

B without a legitimate medical pu:epose, knowingly and 

9 intentionally prescribed and distributed alprazolam, a Schedule 
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IV cmntrolled 

COUNT 

FOUR 

FIVE 

SIX 

substance: 

DATE 

February 16, 2014 

March 9, 2014 

April 13, 2014 
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COUNTS SEVEN through NINE 

(21 \J.S ,c, §§ 841 (a) (1) 1 {b) {2)] 

On or about the following dates, in Los Angeles County, 

within the Central District of California, and elsewhere, 

defendant DANIEL CHAM, then a physician licensed to practice 

medicine in the State of California, while acting and intending 

to act outside the usual course of professional practice and 

without a legitimate medical purpose, knowingly and 

intentionally prescribed and distributed carisoprodol, a 

Schedule IV controlled substance: 

COUNT DATE 

SEVEN February 16, 2014 

EIGHT 

NI.NE 

March 9, 2014 

April 13, 2014 

5 
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1 COUNTS TEN and ELEVEN 

2 [18 U.S.C. § 19S6(a) (1) (B) (i)] 

3 On or about the following dates, in Los Angeles County, 

4 within the Central District of California, and elsewhere, 

5 defendant DANIEL CHAM, knowing that the property involved in 

6 each of the financial ·transactions described below represented 

7 the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, conducted, and 

B willfully caused others to conduct, the following financial 

9 transactions affecting interstate commerce, which transactions, 

10 in fact, involved the proceeds of specified unlawful activity, 

11 namely, distribution of a controlled substance, in violation of 

12 Title 21, United States Code, Secti.011 841 (a) (1), knowing that 

13 each of the transactions was designed in whole and in part to 

14 conceal and disguise the nature, the location, the source, the 

15 ownership, and the control of the proceeds of said specified 

16 unlawful activity: 

17 COUNT 

18 TEN 

19 

20 

21 ELEVEN 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

DATE 

March :i.o, 2014 

April l.4, 2014 

FINANCIAL TRANSACTION 

Deposit of money orders bearing serial 
numbers 21764567070, 21764567081, and 
21764567092, into a Bank of America 
account ending in numbers 0392. 

Deposit of money orders bearing serial 
numbers 21903058023, 21903058012, and 
21903058034, into a Bank of America 
account ending in numbers 0392. 

6 
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1 COUNT TWELVE 

2 (21 U.S.C. § 843 (a) (4) (A)] 

3 On or about July 25, 2012, in Los Angeles County, within 

4 the Central District of California, defendant DANIEL CHAM 

5 ("CHAMn) ·knowingly and intentionally furnished false and 

6 fraudulent material information in an application required to be 

7 filed under Title 21, United States code, Section 823, and Title 

a 21, Code of Federal Regulations1 Section 1301, in that. defendant 

9 CHAM submitted to the United States Drug Enforcement 

10 Administration ("DEA") an application to renew DEA controlled 

11 substance registration number FCOll0231 stating that defendant 

12 CHAM had never had a state professional license placed on 

13 probation when, in truth and in fact, as defendant CHAM then 

14 well knew, on or about June 6 1 2012, the Medical Board of 

15 California placed defendant CHAM's medical license on probation 

16 for a period of five years. 
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1 COUNT THIRTEEN 

2 [21 U.S.C. § S43(a) (4) (A)J 

3 On or about July 25, 2012, in Los Angeles County, within 

4 the Central District of California, defendant DANIEL CHAM 

5 {"CHAM") knowingly and intentionally furnished false and 

15 fraudulent material information in an application required to be 

7 filed under Title 21, United States Code, Section 823, and Title 

B 21, qode of Federal Regulations, Section 1301, in that defendant 

9 CHAM submitted to the united States Drug Enforcement 

10 Administration ( "DEA11
) an application to renew DEA controlled 

11 substance registration number BCB744220 stating that defendant 

12 CHAM had never had a state professional license placed on 

13 probation when, in truth and in fact, as defendant CHAM then 

14. well .knew, on or about June 6, 2012, the Medical Board of 

15 California placed defendant CHAM' s medical license on probation 

16 for a period of five years. 
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COUNT FOURTEEN 

[18 u.s.c. § 1001 (a) (2) l · 

On or about May 13, 2014, in Los Angeles County, within the 

Central District ·of California, in a matter within the 

jurisdiction of the executive branch of the government of the 

United States, specifically, the United States Drug Enforcement 

Administration, defendant DANIEL CHAM ("CHAM"} knowingly and 

willfully made a materially false, fictitious, and fraudulent 

statement and representation, in that defendant CHAM stated that 

he worl~ed at his medical office located in La Puente, 

California, on May 12 1 2014, when in truth and in fact, as 

defendant CHAM ·then well knew, defendant CHAM did not work at 

his medical office in La Puente, California, on May 12, 2014. 
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1 COUNTS FIFTEEN th:i;:ough TWENTY 

2 [21 u.s.c. §§ 841(a) (1), (bl (1) (Cl; 18 u.s.c. § 2{a)] 

3 On or about the following dates, in Los 1\ngelelil County, 

4 within the Central District of California, and elsewhere, 

5 defendants DANIEJ.1 CHAM, then a physician licensed to practice 

6 medicine in the State of California, while acting and intending 

7 to act outside the usual course of profession;;tl practice and 

a without a legitimate medical purpose, and TRACY TOWNSEND, also 

9 known as ("aka") "Milton Turner," aka "Michael Russo," aka "Jim 

10 Pruitt," aka "Thomas Sullivan," aka "Henry Richards," aka "Jason 

11 Harper," aka "Jeffrey Pratt," aka "Stephen Fisher," aka "David 

12 Stanton," aka "Davy Thomas," aka "Ryan Tupper," aka "Dell 

13 Shields," aka "Brandon Clark," aka "Leonard Jones," aka "Mark 

14 Parker," aka "Stanley David," aka "Jacob Zalman," aka "Shawn 

15 Miller," aka "Gilbert. Ives, /1 aka "James Johnson," aka "Kenny 

16 Pierce," .aka. "Jonathan Beals, 0 aka "Brian Carter," aka "Erik 

17 Sommers," each aiding and abetting the other, knowingly and 

18 intentionally possessed witb intent to distribute oxycodone, a 

19 Schedule II narcotic drug controlled substance: 

2 0 COUNT DATE ALIAS USED 

21 FIFTEEN 

22 SIXTEEN 

23 SEVENTEEN 

24 EIGTHEEN 

25 NINETEEN 

26 TWENTY 

27 

2!3 

October 1, 2012 

September 11, 2013 

October 7, 2013 

November 18, 2013 

June 11, 2014 

·July 7 I 2014 

10 

Henry Richards 

Milton Turner 

Michael Russo 

Michael Russo 

Jason Harper 

Michael Russo 
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1 COUNTS TWENTY-ONE through TWENTY-SEVEN 

2 [21 u.s.c. §§ S41(a) (1), (bl (1) {E); 18 O.S.c. § 2 (a)] 

3 On or about the following dates, in Los Angeles County, 

4 within the central District of California, and elsewhere, 

5 defendants DANIEL CHAM, then a physician licensed to practice 

6 medicine in the State of California, while acting and intending 

7 to act outside the usual course of professional practice and 

s without a legitimate medical purpose, and TRACY TOWNSEND, also 

9 known as ("aka") "Milton Turner," aka "Michael Russo," aka "Jim 

10 Pruitt," aka "Thomas Sullivan," aka "Henry Richards," aka "Jason 

11 Harper," aka "Jeffrey Pratt," aka "Stephen Fisher," aka "David 

12 Stanton," aka "'Davy Thomas 1 " aka "Ryan Tupper," ·aka "Dell 

13 Shields,'' aka "Brandon Clark," aka "Leonard Jones, 11 aka "Mark 

14 Parker," aka "Stanley David, 11 aka "Jacob Zalman," aka "Shawn 

15 Miller," aka "Gilbert Ives,n aka "James Johnson," aka "Kenny 

16 Pierce," aka "Jonathan Beals," aka "Brian Carter," aka "Erik 

17 Sommers," each aiding and abetting the other, knowingly and 

18 intentionally possessed with intent to distribute hydrocodone, a 

19 Schedule III narcotic drug controlled substance: 

COUNT DATE 

TWENTY-ONE August 20, 2013 

TWENTY-TWO September 24, 2013 

TWENTY-THREE December 12, 2013 

TWENTY-FOUR May 19, 2014 

TWENTY~FIVE May 31, 2014 

TWENTY-SIX May 31, 2014 

TWENTY-SEVEN June 9, 2014 

28 

11 
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1 COUNTS TWENTY-EIGHT through THIRTY-ONE 

2 [21 u.s.c. !i§ 643 (a) (3) 1 18 u.s.c. § 2 (a) J 

3 On or about the following dates, in Los Angeles County, 

4 within the Central District of California, and elsewhere, 

.5 defendants DANIEL CHAM ("CHAM") and TRACY TOWNSEND ("TOWNSEND") I 

G also known as ("aka") "Milton Turner," aka "Michael Russo," alrn 

7 "Jim Pruitt,." aka "Thomas Sullivan," aka "Henry Richards," aka 

S "Jason Harper 1 " aka "Jeffrey l?ra tt, " aka "Stephen Fisher, " aka 

9 "David Stanton," aka "Davy Thomas," aka "Ryan Tupper," aka "Dell 

10 Shi,elds," aka "Brandon Clark," aka "Leonard Jones," aka "Mark 

11 ·Parker," aka "Stanley David," aka "Jacob Zalman," aka "Shawn 

12 Miller," aka "Gilbert Ives," aka "James Johnson," aka "Kenny 

13 Pierce," aka "Jonathan Beals,-" aka "Brian Carter," aka "Erik 

14 Sommers," each afding and abetting the other, knowingly and 

15 intentionally obtained oxycodone, a.Schedule II narcotic drug 

16 controlled substance, and hydrocodone, a Schedule III narcotic 

17 drug controlled substance, by misrepresentation, fraud, 

18 deception, and subterfuge, to wit, on each of the following 

19 dates, defendant TOWNSEND used .a false alias to fill a 

20 prescription issued by defendant CHAM for controlled substances 

21 as follows: 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

COUNT 

TWENTY-EIGHT 

TWENTY-NINE 

THIRTY 

THIRTY-ONE 

PATE 

October 1, 2012 

October 7 / 2013 

May 19, 2014 

June 11, 2014 

DRUG ALIAS USED 

Hydrooodone Hem'.y Richards 

Oxycodone Michael Russo 

Hydrocodone Thomas Sullivan 

oxyoodone Jason Harper 

12 
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1 FORFEITURE ALLEGATION ONE 

2 [21 u.s.c. § 853] 

3 l. The allegations contained in Counts one thrm1gh Nine, 

4 Counts 12 and 13, and Counts Fifteen through Thirty-One of this 

s Indictment.are hereby repeated, re-alleged, and incorporated by 

6 reference herein as though fully set forth at length for the 

7 purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the provisions of 

a Title 21, United States Code, Section 853. Pursuant to Rule 

9 32.2, Fed. R. Crim. P., notice is hereby given to the defendants 

10 that the United States will seek fo;rfeiture as part of any 

11 sentence in accordance with Title 21, United States Code, 

12 Section· 853, in the event of any defendant's conviction under 

13 any of Counts One through Nine or any of Counts Fifteen through 

14 Thirty-one of this Indictment. 

15 2. Each defendant convicted of any of Counts One through 

16 Nine or any of counts Fifteen through Thirty-One of this 

17 Indictment shall forfeit to the United States the following: 

18 a. All right, title, and interest in any and all 

19 property, real or personal - - (i) constituting, or derived 

20 from, any proceeds obtained, directly or indirectly, as a result 

2J. of any such offense1 and (ii) used, or intended to be Ul:led, in 

22 any manner or part, to commit, or to facilitate the commission 

23 of any such offense; and 

24 b. . A sum of money equal to the total value of the 

25 property described in paragraph 2.a. For each of Counts One 

26 . through Nine and for each of Counts Fifteen through Thirty-One 

27 of this Indictment for which more than one defendant is found 

28 guilty, each such defendant shall be jointly and severally 

13 
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1 liable for the entire amount ordered forfeited pursuant to that 

2 Count. 

3 3. Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 

4 853(p), each defendant convicted of any of Counts One through 

5 Nine or any of Counts Fifteen through Thirty-One of this 

6 Indictment shall forfeit substitute property, up to the total 

7 value of the property described in the preceding paragraph if, 

8 as the result of any act or omission of a defendant,· the 

9 property described in the preceding paragraph, or any portion 

10 thereof (a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due 

11 diligence; (b) has been transferred, sold to or deposited with a 

12 third party; {c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the 

13 · court; (d) has been substantially diminished in value; or (e) 

14 has been commingled with other property that cannot be divided 

15 without difficulty. 

16 
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1. 

FORFEITURE ALLEGATION TWO 

[18 u.s.c. § 982(a) (1}] 

The allegations contained in Counts Ten and Eleven of 

4 this Indictment are hereby repeated, re-alleged, and 

5 incorporated by reference herein as though fuJ.ly set forth at 

6 length for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to the 

7 provisions of Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a) (1), 

8 in the event of defendant DANIEL CH.1\M's ("CHAM's") conviction 

9 under Count Ten or Eleven of this Indictment. Pursuant to Rule 

10 32.2(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, notice is 

11 hereby given to defendant CHAM that the United States will seek 

12 forfeiture as part of any sentence in accordance with Title 18, 

13 United States Code, Section 982(a) (1), in the event of defendant 

14 CHAM's conviction under either or both of Counts Ten and/or 

15 Eleven of this Indictment. 

16 2' If convicted of either or both of Counts Ten and/or 

17 Eleven of this Indictment, defendant CHAM shall forfeit to the 

18 United States the following: 

19 a. All right, title, and interest in any and all 

20 property, real or personal, involved in or traceable to the 

21 commission of any such offense or any transaction set forth in 

22 such Count; ai1d 

23 b. A sum of money equal to the total value of the 

24 property described in paragraph 2.a, 

25 3, Pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, .section 

26 853 (p), if 'convicted of either or both of Counts 'l'en and/or 

27 Eleven of this Indictment, defendant CHAM shall forfeit 

28 substitute property, up to the total value of the property 

15 
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1 described in the preceding paragraph if, as the result of any 

2 act or omission of defendant CHAM, the property described in the 

3 preceding paragraph, or any portion thereof (a) cannot be 

4 located upon the exercise of due~diligence; (b) has been 

5 transferred, sold to, or deposited with a third partyi (c) has 

6 been placl'!d beyo11d the jurisdiction of the court; (d) has been 

7 substantially diminished in value; or (e) has been commingled 

a with other property that cannot be divided without difficulty. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

STEPHANIE YONEKURA 
Acting United States Attorney 

(Lcz. iJ --
ROBERT E, DUGDALE 
Assistant United States Attorney 
Chief, Criminal Division 

19 KEVIN M. LALLY 
Assistant United states Attorney 

A TROE BILL 

I'S/ 
Foreperson 

20 Chief, Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task 
Force Section 

21 
ROB B. VILLEZA 

22 Assistant United States Attorney 
Deputy Chief, Organized Crime Drug 

23 Enforcement Task Force Section 

2 4 BENJAMIN R. BARRON 
Assistant United States Attorney 

25 Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force 
Section 

26 

27 

28 

16 
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1 EILEEN M. DECKER 
United States Attorney 

2 LAWRENCE S. MIDDLETON 
Assistant United States Attorney 

3 Chief, Criminal Division 
BENJAMIN R. BARRON (Cal. Bar No. 257094) 

4 Assistant United States Attorney 
Deputy Chief, OCDETF Section 

5 1400 United States Courthouse 
312 North Spring Street 

6 Los Angeles, California 90012 
Telephone: ( 213) 894-3542 

7 Facsimile: (213) 894-0142 
E-mail: ben.barron@usdoj.gov 

8 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

9 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

10 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

11 FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

12 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

13 Plaintiff, 

14 v. 

15 DANIEL CHAM, 

16 Defendant. 

17 

No. CR 14-591-DDP 

PLEA AGREEMENT FOR DEFENDANT 
DANIEL CHAM 

18 1. This constitutes the plea agreement between defendant 

19 DANIEL CHAM ("defendant") and the United States Attorney's Office for 

20 the Central District of California (the "USAO") in the above-

21 captioned case. This agreement is limited to the USAO and cannot 

22 bind any other federal, state, local, or foreign prosecuting, 

23 enforcement, administrative, or regulatory authorities. 

24 DEFENDANT'S OBLIGATIONS 

25 2 •. Defendant agrees to: 

26 a. At the earliest opportunity requested by the USAO and 

27 provided by the Court, appear and plead guilty to counts one and ten 

28 of the indictment in United States v. Daniel Cham, CR No. 14-591-DDP, 
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7 

8 
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which charges defendant: as to count one, with distribution of 

oxycodone, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 

841(a)(l), (b)(l)(C); and, as to count ten, with money laundering, in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(a)(l)(B)(i). 

b. Not contest facts agreed to in this agreement. 

c. Abide by all agreements regarding sentencing contained 

in this agreement. 

d. Appear for all court appearances, surrender as ordered 

9 for service of sentence, obey all conditions of any bond, and obey 

10 any other ongoing court order in this matter. 

11 e. Not commit any crime; however, offenses that would be 

12 excluded for sentencing purposes under United States Sentencing 

13 Guidelines ("U.S.S.G.n or "Sentencing Guidelinesn) § 4Al.2(c) are not 

14 

15 

16 

17 

within the scope of this agreement. 

f. Be truthful at all times with Pretrial Services, the 

United States Probation Office ("USPO"), and the Court. 

g. Pay the applicable special assessment at or before the 

18 time of sentencing unless defendant lacks the ability to pay and 

19 prior to sentencing submits a completed financial statement on a form 

20 to be provided by the USAO. 

21 FORFEITURE AND FINANCIAL ACCOUNTABILITY 

22 

23 

3. Defendant further agrees: 

i. Truthfully to disclose to law enforcement 

24 officials, at a date and time to be set by the USAO, the location of, 

25 defendant's ownership interest in, and all other information known to 

26 defendant about, all monies, properties, and/or assets of any kind, 

27 derived from or acquired as a result of, or used to facilitate the 

28 commission of, defendant's illegal activities, and to forfeit all 

2 
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1 right, title, and interest in and to such items, specifically 

2 including all right, title, and interest in and to all United States 

3 currency, bank funds, property, and assets, specifically including 

4 the following assets seized by law enforcement officials on or about 

5 May 13, 2014: (i) $44,780.00 in united States currency; and 

6 (ii) $12,893.18, $2,412.18, and $1,590.40 in bank funds; all of which 

7 currency and bank funds defendant admits were involved in and/or 

8 constitute the proceeds of defendant's illegal activity in violation 

9 of 18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(l)(B)(i) and/or 21 U.S.C. § 84l(a)(l). The 

10 parties agree not to use any admission by defendant in this paragraph 

11 in any arguments before the Court regarding the Sentencing Guidelines 

12 calculation or the factors under 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a). 

13 b. To the Court's entry of an order of forfeiture at or 

14 before sentencing with respect to these assets and to the forfeiture 

15 of the assets. 

16 c. To take whatever steps are necessary to pass to the 

17 United States clear title to the assets described above, including, 

18 without limitation, the execution of a consent decree of forfeiture 

19 and the completing of any other legal documents required for the 

20 transfer of title to the United States. 

21 d. Not to contest any administrative forfeiture 

22 proceedings or civil judicial proceedings commenced against the 

23 currency and bank funds specifically described in paragraph 3(a) 

24 pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §§ 981, 982, and 21 u.s.c. § 853(p) and 

25 881(a)(6). With respect to any criminal forfeiture ordered as a 

26 result of this plea agreement, defendant waives the requirements of 

27 Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 32.2 and 43(a) regarding notice 

28 of the forfeiture in the charging instrument, announcements of the 

3 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Case 2:14-cr-00591-AG Document 75 Filed 03/24/16 Page 4 of 18 Page ID #:346 

forfeiture sentencing, and incorporation of the forfeiture in the 

judgment. Defendant acknowledges that forfeiture of the assets is 

part of the sentence that may be imposed in this case and waives any 

failure by the Court to advise defendant of this, pursuant to Federal 

Rule of Criminal Procedure ll(b)(l)(J), at the time the Court accepts 

defendant's guilty pleas. 

e. Not to assist any other individual in any effort 

falsely to contest the forfeiture of the assets described above. 

f. Not to claim that reasonable cause to seize the assets 

10 was lacking. 

11 g. To prevent the transfer, sale, destruction, or loss of 

12 any and all assets described above to the extent defendant has the 

13 ability to do so. 

14 h. To fill out and deliver to the USAO a completed 

15 financial statement listing defendant's assets on a form provided by 

16 the USAO. 

17 l. That forfeiture of assets described above shall not be 

18 counted toward satisfaction of any special assessment, restitution, 

19 or costs the Court may impose. 

20 THE USAO'S OBLIGATIONS 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

4. The USAO agrees to: 

a. Not contest facts agreed to in this agreement. 

b. Abide by all agreements regarding sentencing contained 

in this agreement. 

c. At the time of sentencing, move to dismiss the 

remaining counts of the indictment as against defendant. Defendant 

agrees, however, that at the time of sentencing the Court may 

consider, or not consider, any dismissed charges in determining the 

4 
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1 applicable Sentencing Guidelines range, the propriety and extent of 

2 any departure from that range, and the sentence to be imposed. 

3 d. At the time of sentencing, provided that defendant 

4 demonstrates an acceptance of responsibility for the offense up to 

5 and including the time of sentencing, recommend a two-level reduction 

6. in the applicable Sentencing Guidelines offense level, pursuant to 

7 U.S.S.G. § 3El.l, and recommend and, if necessary, move for an 

8 additional one-level reduction if available under that section. 

9 e. Not recommend imposition of a fine against defendant 

10 in this matter. 

11 f. Except for criminal tax violations (including 

12 conspiracy to commit such violations chargeable under 18 u.s.c. 

13 § 371), not seek further criminal charges against defendant for 

14 violations arising out of the facts set forth in the factual basis 

15 section of this agreement or in the supporting affidavit for the 

16 search warrant docketed in this district as 14-0934M and captioned 

17 "In the Matter of the Search of 1800 South Buenos Aires Drive, 

18 Covina, CA 91724." Defendant understands that the USAO is free to 

19 criminally prosecute defendant for any other unlawful past conduct or 

20 any unlawful conduct that occurs after the date of this agreement. 

21 Defendant agrees that at the time of sentencing the Court may 

22 consider the uncharged conduct in determining the applicable 

23 Sentencing Guidelines range, the propriety and extent of any 

24 departure from that range, and the sentence to be imposed after 

25 consideration of the Sentencing Guidelines and all other relevant 

26 factors under 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a). 

27 

28 

5 
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NATURE OF THE OFFENSES 

5. Defendant understands that for defendant to be guilty of 

the crime charged in count one, that is, distribution of oxycodone, 

in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) and 

(b)(l)(C), the following must.be true: 

a. defendant knowingly and intentionally distributed 

oxycodone, knowing that it was a controlled substance; 

b. the distribution of oxycodone was outside the usual 

course of professional practice and without a legitimate medical 

purpose; and 

c. defendant acted with the intent to distribute the 

12 oxycodone outside the usual course of professional practice and 

13 without a legitimate medical purpose. 

14 A doctor "distributes" a controlled substance by the act of 

15 writing a prescription for a controlled substance. 

16 6. Defendant understands that for defendant to be guilty of 

17 the crime charged in count ten, that is money laundering, in 

18 violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(a)(l)(B)(i), 

19 the following must be true: 

20 a. The defendant conducted a financial transaction 

21 involving property that represented the proceeds of a violation of 

22 Title 21, United States Code, Sections 84l(a)(l) and 84l(b)(l)(C) 

23 (distribution of oxycodone); 

24 b. The defendant knew that the property represented the 

25 proceeds of such unlawful conduct; and 

26 c. The defendant knew that the transaction was designed 

27 in whole or in part to conceal and disguise the nature and the source 

28 of the proceeds of such unlawful conduct. 

6 
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PENALTIES 

7. Defendant understands that the statutory maximum sentence 

that the Court can impose for a violation of Title 21, United States 

Code, Sections 841(a)(l), (b)(l)(C), is: 20 years imprisonment; a 

lifetime period of supervised release; a fine of $1,000,000 or twice 

the gross gain or gross loss resulting from the offense, whichever is 

greatest; and a mandatory special assessment of $100. Defendant 

understands that the statutory minimum term of supervised release 

that the Court must impose is a term of supervised release not less 

than three years. 

8. Defendant understands that the statutory maximum sentence 

12 that the Court can impose for a violation of Title 18, United States 

13 Code, Section 1956(a)(l)(B)(i), is: 20 years imprisonment; a three-

14 year period of supervised release; a fine of $500,000 or twice the 

15 gross gain or gross loss resulting from the offense, whichever is 

16 greatest; and a mandatdry special assessment of $100. 

17 9. Defendant understands, therefore, that the total maximum 

18 sentence for the offenses to which defendant is pleading guilty is: 

19 40 years imprisonment; a lifetime period of supervised release; a 

20 fine of $1,500,000 or twice the gross gain or gross loss resulting 

21 from the offenses, whichever is greatest; and a mandatory special 

22 assessment of $200. 

23 10. Defendant understands that supervised release is a period 

24 of time following imprisonment during which defendant will be subject 

25 to various restrictions and requirements. Defendant understands that 

26 if defendant violates one or more of the conditions of any supervised 

27 release imposed, defendant may be returned to prison for all or part 

28 of the term of supervised release authorized by statute for the 

7 
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1 offense that resulted in the term of supervised release, which could 

2 result in defendant serving a total term of imprisonment greater than 

3 the statutory maximum stated above. 

4 11. Defendant understands that, by pleading guilty, defendant 

5 may be giving up valuable government benefits and valuable civic 

6 rights, such as the right to vote, the right to possess a firearm, 

7 the right to hold office, and the right to serve on a jury. 

8 Defendant understands that once the court accepts defendant's guilty 

9 plea, it will be a federal felony for defendant to.possess a firearm 

10 or ammunition. Defendant understands that the conviction in this 

11 case may also subject defendant to various other collateral 

12 consequences, including but not limited to revocation of probation, 

13 parole, or supervised release in another case and suspension or 

14 revocation of a professional license (such as, for example, any 

15 medical license held by defendant and any federal registration 

16 relating to the.prescription or dispensation of controlled 

17 substances). Defendant understands that unanticipated collateral 

18 consequences will not serve as grounds to withdraw defendant's guilty 

19 pleas. 

20 12. Defendant understands that, if defendant is not a United 

21 States citizen, the felony conviction in this case may subject 

22 defendant to: removal, also known as deportation, which may, under 

23 some circumstances, be mandatory; denial of citizenship; and denial 

24 of admission to the United States in the future. The court cannot, 

25 and defendant's attorney also may not be able to, advise defendant 

26 fully regarding the immigration consequences of the felony conviction 

27 in this case. Defendant understands that unexpected immigration 

28 

8 
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1 consequences will not serve as grounds to withdraw defendant's guilty 

2 plea. 

3 13. Defendant understands that under 21 u.s.c. § 862a, 

4 defendant will not be eligible for assistance under state programs 

5 funded under the Social Security Act or Federal Food Stamp Act or for 

6 federal food stamp program benefits, and that any such benefits or 

7 assistance received by defendant's family members will be reduced to 

8 reflect defendant's ineligibility. 

9 FACTUAL BASIS 

10 14. Defendant admits that defendant is, in fact, guilty of the 

11 offenses to which defendant is agreeing to plead guilty. Defendant 

12 and the USAO agree to the statement of facts provided below and agree 

13 that this statement of facts is sufficient to support pleas of guilty 

14 to the charges described in this agreement but is not meant to be a 

15 complete recitation of all facts relevant to the underlying criminal 

16 conduct or all facts known to either party that relate to that 

17 conduct. 

18 On March 9, 2014, defendant, a medical doctor, issued 
prescriptions for controlled drugs including oxycodone 

19 ("the prescriptions") to a person posing as a patient but 
who was, in fact, an undercover law enforcement officer. 

20 Defendant issued the prescriptions while acting, and 
intending to act, outside the usual course of professional 

21 practice and without a legitimate medical purpose. In 
exchange for the prescriptions, the undercover officer gave 

22 defendant $300 in money orders ("the money orders"). 

23 The following day, March 10, 2014, defendant deposited the 
money orders into a Bank of America account ending in 

24 numbers 0392, which was held in the name of a corporation 
called Good Life 2 LLC. Defendant made this deposit 

25 knowing that the money orders represented proceeds of the 
unlawful distribution of controlled substances via the 

26 prescriptions, and knowing that the transaction was 
designed to conceal and disguise the nature and source of 

27 the money orders. 

28 

9 
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SENTENCING FACTORS 

15. Defendant understands that in determining defendant's 

sentence the Court is required to calculate the applicable Sentencing 

Guidelines range and to consider that range, possible departures 

under the Sentencing Guidelines, and the other sentencing factors set 

forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a). Defendant understands that the 

Sentencing Guidelines are advisory only, that defendant cannot have 

any expectation of receiving a sentence within the calculated 

Sentencing Guidelines range, and that after considering the 

Sentencing Guidelines and the other § 3553(a) factors, the Court will 

be free to exercise its discretion to impose any sentence it finds 

appropriate up to the maximum set by statute for the crimes of 

conviction. 

16. Except as set forth in paragraphs 4(d) and 4(e), defendant 

15 and the USAO have no agreement as to the appropriate sentence or the 

16 applicable Sentencing Guidelines factors. Except as set forth in 

17 paragraphs 4(d) and 4(e), both parties reserve the right to seek any 

18 sentence within the statutory maximum, and to argue for any criminal 

19 history score and category, base offense level, specific offense 

20 characteristics, adjustments, departures, and variances. Defendant 

21 understands that paragraphs 4(c) and 4(f) (regarding dismissal of 

22 counts and agreement not to further prosecute defendant for certain 

23 uncharged conduct) in no way limit the arguments that the USAO may 

24 raise before the Court in any context, or the supporting facts and 

25 evidence that the USAO may present before the Court, such as 

26 regarding the Sentencing Guidelines calculation or the factors under 

27 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a). 

28 

10 
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1 17. Defendant understands that there is no agreement as to 

2 defendant's criminal history or criminal history category. 

3 18. Defendant and the USAO reserve the right to argue for a 

4 sentence outside the sentencing range established by the Sentencing 

5 Guidelines based on the factors set forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a)(l), 

6 ( a ) ( 2 ) , ( a) ( 3 ) , ( a) ( 6 ) , and ( a ) ( 7 ) . 

7 WAIVER OF CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

19. Defendant understands that by pleading guilty, defendant 

gives up the following rights: 

a. The right to persist in a plea of not guilty. 

b. The right to a speedy and public trial by jury. 

c. The right to be represented by counsel and if 

13 necessary have the court appoint counsel -- at trial. Defendant 

14 understands, however, that, defendant retains the right to be 

15 represented by counsel -- and if necessary have the court appoint 

16 counsel -- at every other stage of the proceeding. 

17 d. The right to be presumed innocent and to have the 

18 burden of proof placed on the government to prove defendant guilty 

19 beyond a reasonable doubt. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

e. The right to confront and cross-examine witnesses 

against defendant. 

f. The right to testify and to present evidence in 

opposition to the charges, including the right to compel the 

attendance of witnesses to testify. 

g. The right not to be compelled to testify, and, if 

26 defendant chose not to testify or present evidence, to have that 

27 choice not be used against defendant. 

28 

11 
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1 h. Any and all rights to pursue any affirmative defenses, 

2 Fourth Amendment or Fifth Amendment claims, and other pretrial 

3 motions that have been filed or could be filed. 

4 WAIVER OF APPEAL OF CONVICTION 

5 20. Defendant understands that, with the exception of an appeal 

6 based on a claim that defendant's guilty pleas were involuntary, by 

7 pleading guilty defendant is waiving and giving up any right to 

8 appeal defendant's convictions on the offenses to which defendant is 

9 pleading guilty. 

10 LIMITED MUTUAL WAIVER OF APPEAL OF SENTENCE AND COLLATERAL ATTACK 

11 21. Defendant gives up the right to appeal the following: 

12 (a) the procedures, any and all notice provisions, and calculations 

13 and final sums and amounts described in Paragraph 3 of this agreement 

14 related to forfeiture; and (b) any of the following conditions of 

15 probation or supervised release imposed by the Court: the conditions 

16 set forth in General Orders 318, 01-05, and/or 05-02 of this Court; 

17 the drug testing conditions mandated by 18 U.S.C. §§ 3563(a)(5) and 

18 3583(d); and the alcohol and drug use conditions authorized by 18 

19 u.s.c. § 3563(b)(7). 

20 22. The USAO and defendant reserve the right to appeal any 

21 other portion of the sentence. 

22 23. Defendant also gives up any right to bring a post-

23 conviction collateral attack on any order of forfeiture, whether 

24 civil, criminal, or administrative. 

25 RESULT OF WITHDRAWAL OF GUILTY PLEA 

26 24. Defendant agrees that if, after entering guilty pleas 

27 pursuant to this agreement, defendant seeks to withdraw and succeeds 

28 in withdrawing defendant's guilty pleas on any basis other than a 

12 
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1 claim and finding that entry into this plea agreement was 

2 involuntary, then (a) the USAO will be relieved of all of its 

3 obligations under this agreement; and (b) should the USAO choose to 

4 pursue any charge that was either dismissed or not filed as a result 

5 of this agreement, then (i) any applicable statute of limitations 

6 will be tolled between the date of defendant's signing of this 

7 agreement and the filing commencing any such action; and 

8 (ii) defendant waives and gives up all defenses based on the statute 

9 of limitations, any claim of pre-indictment delay, or any speedy 

10 trial claim with respect to any such action, except to the extent 

11 that such defenses existed as of the date of defendant's signing this 

12 agreement. 

13 EFFECTIVE DATE OF AGREEMENT 

14 25, This agreement is effective upon signature and execution of 

15 all required certifications by .defendant, defendant·' s counsel, and an 

16 Assistant United States Attorney. 

17 

18 

BREACH OF AGREEMENT 

26. Defendant agrees that if defendant, at any time after the 

19 signature of this agreement and execution of all required 

20 certifications by defendant, defendant's counsel, and an Assistant 

21 United States Attorney, knowingly violates or fails to perform any of 

22 defendant's obligations under this agreement ("a breach"), the USAO 

23 may declare this agreement breached. All of defendant's obligations 

24 are material, a single breach of this agreement is sufficient for the 

25 USAO to declare a breach, and defendant shall not be deemed to have 

26 cured a breach without the express agreement of the USAO in writing. 

27 If the USAO declares this agreement breached, and the Court finds 

28 such a breach to have occurred, then: (a) if defendant has previously 

13 
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1 entered guilty pleas pursuant to this agreement, defendant will not 

2 be able to withdraw the guilty pleas, and (b) the USAO will be 

3 relieved of all its obligations under this agreement. 

4 27. Following the Court's finding of a knowing breach of this 

5 agreement by defendant, then: 

6 a. Defendant agrees that: (i) any statements made by 

7 defendant, under oath, at the guilty plea hearing (if such a hearing 

8 occurred prior to the breach); (ii) the agreed to factual basis 

9 statement in this agreement; and (iii) any evidence derived from such 

10 statements, shall be admissible against defendant in any such action 

11 against defendant, and defendant waives and gives up any claim under 

12 the United States Constitution, any statute, Rule 410 of the Federal 

13 Rules of Evidence, Rule ll(f) of the Federal Rules of criminal 

14 Procedure, or any other federal rule, that the statements or any 

15 evidence derived from the statements should be suppressed or are 

16 inadmissible. 

17 b. Should the USAO choose to pursue any charge that was 

18 either dismissed or not filed as a result of this agreement, then: 

19 i. Defendant agrees that any applicable statute of 

20 limitations is tolled between the date of defendant's signing of this 

21 agreement and the filing commencing any such action. 

22 ii. Defendant waives and gives up all defenses based 

23 on the statute of limitations, any claim of pre-indictment delay, or 

24 any speedy trial claim with respect to any such action, except to the 

25 extent that such defenses existed as of the date of defendant's 

26 signing this agreement. 

27 

28 
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COURT AND PROBATION OFFICE NOT PARTIES 

28. Defendant understands that the Court and the United States 

Probation Office are not parties to this agreement and need not 

accept any of the USAO's sentencing recommendations or the parties' 

agreements to facts or sentencing factors. 

29. Defendant understands that both defendant and the USAO are 

7 free to: (a) supplement the facts by supplying relevant information 

8 to the United States Probation Office and the Court, and (b) correct 

9 any and all factual misstatements relating to the Court's Sentencing 

10 Guidelines calculations and determination of sentence. While this 

11 paragraph permits both the USAO and defendant to submit full and 

12 complete factual information to the United States Probation Off ice 

13 and the Court, even if that factual information may be viewed as 

14 inconsistent with the facts agreed to in this agreement, this 

15 paragraph does not affect defendant's and the USAO's obligations not 

16 to contest the facts agreed to in this agreement. 

17 30. Defendant understands that even if the Court ignores any 

18 sentencing recommendation, finds facts or reaches conclusions 

19 different from those agreed to, and/or imposes any sentence up to the 

20 maximum established by statute, defendant cannot, for that reason, 

21 withdraw defendant's guilty pleas, and defendant will remain bound to 

22 fulfill all defendant's obligations under this agreement. Defendant 

23 understands that no one not the prosecutor, defendant's attorney, 

24 or the Court -- can make a binding prediction or promise regarding 

25 the sentence defendant will receive, except that it will be within 

26 the statutory maximum. 

27 

28 

15 
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1 NO ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS 

2 31. Defendant understands that, except as set forth herein, 

3 there are no promises, understandings, or agreements between the USAO 

4 and defendant or defendant's attorney, and that no additional 

5 promise', understanding, or agreement may be entered into unless in a 

6 writing signed by all parties or on the record in court. 

7 111 

8 111 

9 Ill 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
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22 
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24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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1 PLEA AGREEMENT PART OF THE GUILTY PLEA HEARING 

2 32. The parties agree that this agreement will be considered 

3 part of the record of defendant's gUilty plea hearing as if the 

4 entire agreement had been read into the record of the proceeding. 

S AGREED AND ACCEPTED 

6 UNITED STATES ATTORNEY'S OFFICE 
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF 

7 CALIFORNIA 

8 EILEEN M. DECKER 
United States Attorney 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

l?kUEL CHAM 

Defend/4Pt: ~ 
VICTOHERMAN 
Attorney for Defendant 

Date 

Dat 

17 CERTIFICATION OF DEFENDANT 

18 I have read this agreement in its entirety. I have had enough 

19 time to review and consider this agreement, and r have carefully and 

20 thoroughly discussed every part of it with my attorney. I understand 

21 the terms of this agreement, and I voluntarily agree to those terms. 

22 I have discussed the evidence with my attorney, and my attorney has 

23 advised me of my rights, of possible pretrial motions that might be 

24 filed, of possible defenses that might be asserted either prior to or 

25 at trial, of the sentencing factors set forth in 18 u.s.c. § 3553(a}, 

26 of relevant Sentencing Guidelines provisions, and of the consequences 

27 of entering into this agreement. No promises, inducements, or 

28 representations of any kind have been made to me other than those 

17 
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l contained in this agreement. No one has threatened or forced me in 

2 any way to enter into this agreement. I am satisfied with the 

3 representation of my attorney in this matter, and ! am pleading 

4 guilty because I am guilty of the charges and wish to take advantage 

5 Of the promises set forth in this agreement, and not for any other 

6 reason. 

7 

8 DANIEL CHAM 
Defendant 

Date 

9 

10 CERTIFICATION OF DEFENDANT'S ATTORNEY 

11 ! am DANIEL CHA.M's attorney. I have carefully and thoroughly 

12 discussed every part of this agreement with my client. Further, I 

13 have fully adv·ised my client of his rights, of possible pretrial 

14 motions that might be filed, of possible defenses that might be 

15 asserted either prior to or at trial, of the sentencing factors set 

16 forth in 18 u.s.c. § 3553{a), of relevant Sentencing Guidelines 

17 provisions, and of the consequences of entering into this agreement. 

18 To my knowledge: no promises, inducements, or representations of any 

19 kind have been made to my client other than those contained in this 

20 agreement; no one has threatened or forced my client in any way to 

21 enter into this agreement; my client's decision to enter into this 

22 agreement is an informed and voluntary one; and the factual basis set 

23 forth in this agreement is sufficient to support my client's entry of 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

guilty pleas pursuant to this 

/I)~~ -VICTOR SHERMAN 
Attorney for Defendant 

agreement. 

18 
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Case No. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

CRIMINAL MINUTES -- CHANGE OF PLEA 

CR 14-00591 DDP (1) Date: April 11, 2016 
============================================================================ 
PRESENT: HONORABLE DEAN D. PREGERSON, JUDGE 

Patricia Gomez 
Courtroom Deputy 

Maria Bustillos 
Gou rt Reporter 

Benjamin R. Barron 
Asst. U.S. Attorney 

============================================================================ 
U.S.A. vs (Dfts listed below) 

1) DANIEL CHAM 
present in custody 

PROCEEDINGS: CHANGE OF PLEA 

Attorneys for Defendants 

1) Victor Sherman 
present retained 

Court and counsel confer re the change of plea. Defendant moves to change plea to the Indictment . 
Defendant now enters a new and different plea of Guilty to Counts One and Ten of the Indictment. 
The Court questions the defendant regarding the plea of Guilty and finds a factual and legal basis for 
the plea; waivers of constitutional rights are freely, voluntarily and intelligently made; plea is 
provident; plea is accepted and entered. 

The Court refers the defendant to the Probation Office for the preparation of a presentence report and 
continues the matter to August 1, 2016 at 1 :30 p.m., for sentencing. 

The Court vacates the jury trial date. 

Counsel are notified that Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 32(b)(6)(B) requires the parties to 
notify the Probation Officer, and each other, of any objections to the Presentence Report 
within fourteen (14) days of receipt. Alternatively, the Court will permit counsel to file such 
objections no later than twenty-one (21) days before Sentencing. The Court construes 
"objections" to include departure arguments. Requests for continuances shall be filed or 
requested no later than twenty-one (21) days before Sentencing. Strict compliance with the 
above is mandatory because untimely filings impede the abilities of the Probation Office and 
of the Court to prepare for Sentencing. Failure to meet these deadlines is grounds for 
sanctions. 

CR-8 (09/06) CRIMINAL MINUTES - CHANGE OF PLEA 00 : 25 
~~-

Initials of Deputy Clerk: PG 



BEFORE THE 
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Amended Accusation and 
and Petition to Revoke Probation Against: 

DANIEL K. CHAM, M.D. 

Physician's and Surgeon's 
Certificate No. A86714 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

MBC No. 8002015016097 

ORDER GRANTING STAY 

(Govermnent Code Section 11521) 

~~~~~~~~~~R=e~sp~o=n=d=e=nt~~~~l 

Timothy A. Scott, Esq., on behalf ofrespondent, Daniel K. Cham, M.D., has filed a 
Request for Stay of execution of the Decision in this matter with an effective date of May 12, 
2017, at 5:00 p.m. 

Execution is stayed until June 9, 2017. 

This stay is granted solely for the purpose of allowing the Respondent to file a Petition 
for Reconsideration. 

DATED: Mayl0,2017 

Kimberly Kirc meyer 
Executive Director 
Medical Board of California 



I XAVIER BACERRA 
Attorney General of California 

2 JUDITH T. ALVARADO 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

3 RANDALL R. MURPHY 
Deputy Attorney General 

4 State Bar No. 165851 
California Department of Justice 

5 300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 

6 Telephone: (213) 897-2493 
Facsimile: (213) 897-9395 

7 Attorneys for Complainant 

8 BEFORE THE 
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 

9 DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

10 

11 

12 

13 

In the Matter of the Accusation and Petition to 
Revoke Probation Against: 

DANIEL K. CHAM, M.D. 

14 1014SouthMarengoAvenue, Unit6 
Alhambra, California 91803 · 

15 

16 Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate A86714, 

17 Respondent. 

18 

Case No. 800-2015-016097 

DEFAULT DECISION AND ORDER; 
DECLARATION OF SOLARIO, 
GARCIA, CORONA AND MURPHY IN 
SUPPORT; EXHIBITS 

19 
FINDINGS OF FACT 

20 I. On or about April 14, 2004, the Medical Board of California (Board) issued 

21 Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. A86714 to Respondent. That Physician's and 

22 Surgeon's Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought 

23 herein and expired on November 30, 2015. A true and correct copy of that Certificate of 

24 Liccnsure is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

25 2. On or about January 26, 2016, Complainant Kimberly Kirchmeyer, in her official 

26 capacity as the Executive Director of the Medical Board of California, Department ofConsmner 

27 Affairs, filed Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800-2015-016097 against Daniel 

28 K. Cham, M.D. (Respondent) before the Medical Board of California. 

DANIEL K. CHAM, M.D., DEFAULT DECISION & ORDER (MBC Case No. 800-2015-016097) 



1 3. On or about May 2, 2016, Complainant Kimberly Kirchmeyer, in her official capacity 

2 as the Executive Director of the Medical Board of California, Department of Consumer Affairs, 

3 filed Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800-2015-016097 against 

4 Daniel K. Cham, M.D. (Respondent) before the Medical Board of California. 

5 4. On or about May 2, 2016, Michelle Solaria, an employee of the Complainant Agency, 

6 served by Certified and First Class Mail a copy of the Accusation and Petition to Revoke 

7 Probation No. 800-2015-016097, together with a Reqnest for Discovery, Statement to 

8 Respondent, two forms ofa Notice ofDefense and the Board's Disciplinary Guidelines to 

9 Respondent's address of record with the Board, which was and is 1014 S Marengo Ave., Unit 6 

10 Alhambra, California 91803. (See Declaration of Michelle Solaria, para. 3.) A copy of the 

11 Declaration of Service and Certified Mail Receipt are attached as Exhibit B to the Declaration of 

12 Michelle Solario, and are incorporated herein by reference. The documents were returned by the 

13 U.S. Postal service marked "Return to sender, Unclaimed". (Id.) 

14 5. On or about May 2, 2016, Michelle Solaria, an employee of the Complainant Agency, 

15 served by Certified and First Class Mail a copy of the Amended Accusation and Petition to 

16 Revoke Probation No. 800-2015-016097, together with a Request for Discovery, Statement to 

17 Respondent, two forms of a Notice of Defense and the Board's Disciplinary Guidelines to 

18 Respondent's known place of residence, the Los Angeles Metro Detention Center, 535 North 

19 Alameda Street, Los Angeles, California 90012. (See Declaration ofMichcllc Solaria, para. 3.) 

20 6. Service of both the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation and the Amended 

21 Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation were effective as a matter of law under the 

22 provisions ofGovermnenl Code section 11505, subdivision (c). 

23 7. On or about May 6, 2016, the signed Certified Mail Receipt for the documents 

24 delivered to the Los Angeles Metro Detention Center were accepted on behalf of Respondent and 

25 signed for by "S. Joiner". A copy of the Certified Mail receipt is attached as Exhibit C to the 

26 Declaration of Michelle Solaria, and is incorporated herein by reference. 

27 8. On numerous occasions between February 1, 2016. and May 31, 2016, Deputy 

28 Attorney General Randall R. Murphy spoke with Respondent's criminal attorney, Victor 
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1 Sherman, Esq., regarding the failure of either Respondent or his attorney to return the Notice of 

2 Defense to DAG Murphy, or to the Medical Board of California. (Declaration of Randall R. 

3 Murphy (Murphy Declaration), paragraph 3.) 

4 9. On or about April 15, 2016, Mr. Sherman filed a request for a continuance in a related 

5 matter, In the Matter qf"the Interim Suspension Order Against Daniel K. Cham, MD., OAH Case 

6 Number 2016031084. A true and correct copy of the e-mail sent by Mr. Sherman in that case is 

7 attached to the Murphy Declaration as Exhibit A. Although Mr. Sherman represents to OAH that 

8 he is Respondent's attorney, no Notice of Defense or other indicia of representation (other than 

9 the e-mail) was ever received in either The Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, The 

10 Amended Accusation/Petition to Revoke Probation or In the Matter qf"the Interim Suspension 

11 Order Against Daniel K. Cham. The Petition for an Interim Suspension Order was granted on 

12 April 29, 2016.1 

13 10. Government Code section 11506 states, in pe1tinent part: 

14 "(c) The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits if the respondent files a 

15 notice of defense, and the notice shall be deemed a specific denial of all parts of the accusation 

16 not expressly admitted. Failure to file a notice of defense shall constitute a waiver of 

17 respondent's right to a hearing, but the agency in its discretion may nevertheless grant a hearing." 

18 11. Respondent failed to file a Notice of Defense within 15 days after service upon him 

19 of both the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation and the Amended Accusation and 

20 Petition lo revoke Probation, and therefore waived his right to a hearing on the merits of the 

21 Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800-2015-016097. 

22 12. California Government Code section 11520 states, in pertinent part: 

23 "(a) If the respondent either fails to file a notice of defense or to appear at the hearing, the 

24 agency may take action based upon the respondent's express admissions or upon other evidence 

25 and affidavits may be used as evidence without any notice to respondent." 

26 

27 

28 

1 An Ex Parle Petition for an Interim Suspension Order was granted on April 5, 2016. A 
noticed hearing on the Petition was held on April 25, 2016. 
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13. Pursuant to its authority under Government Code section 11520, the Board finds 

2 Respondent is in default. The Board will take action without further hearing and, based on 

3 Respondent's express admissions by way of default and the evidence before it, contained in 

4 exhibits A and B, and the Declarations of Randall R. Murphy, DAG, and DEA Investigator 

5 Veronica Corona, finds that the allegations in Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke 

6 Probation No. 800-2015-016097 are true. 

7 DETERMINATION OF ISSUES 

8 1. Based on the foregoing findings of fact, Respondent Daniel K. Cham, M.D. has 

9 subjected his Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. A86714 to discipline. 

10 2. A copy of the Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation and the related 

11 documents and Declaration of Service are attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

3. 

4. 

The agency has jurisdiction to adjudicate this case by default. 

The Medical Board of Califomia is authorized to revoke Respondent's Physician's 

and Surgeon's Certificate based upon the following violations alleged in the Amended 

Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation. 

5. 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Unprofessional Conduct-Gross Ncgligeuce) 

As set forth in the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, attached hereto as 

Exhibit B, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Business and Professions Code2 

section 2234, subdivision b, in that Resplendent engaged in acts of gross negligence. The 

circumstances are as follows: 

A. Respondent engaged in the inappropriate prescribing of narcotics and controlled 

drugs on an ongoing basis for profit without an examination or otherwise detennining a medical 

reason to prescribe opioids. See Declaration oflnvestigator Veronica Corona, para. 4. 

II! 

II I 

2 All Code references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise 
indicated. 
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3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

6. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Unprofessional Conduct-Repeated Negligent Acts) 

As set forth in Hie Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, attached hereto as 

Exhibit B, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 2234, subdivision c, in 

that Resplendent engaged in repeated negligent acts. The circumstances are as follows: 

A. Respondent repeatedly prescribed narcotics and controlled drugs on an ongoing 

basis for profit without an examination or otherwise determining a medical reason to prescribe 

opioids. See Declaration oflnvestigalor Veronica Corona, para. 4. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Prescribing Controlled Substances witltout Medical Indication) 

7. As set forth in the Accusation and Petition to .Revoke Probation, attached hereto as 

12 Exhibit B, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 11154 of the Health and 

13 Safety Code in that Resplendent prescribed controlled substances without medical indication. 

14 The circumstances are as follows: 

A. Respondent repeatedly prescribed narcotics and controlled drugs on an ongoing 15 

16 

17 

18 

basis for profit without medical indication, an examination or otherwise determining a medical 

reason to prescribe opioids. See Declaration oflnvestigator Veronica Corona, para. 4. 

19 

20 8. 

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Violating Statute Regulating Controlled Snbstances) 

As set fo1th in the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, attached hereto as 

21 Exhibit B, Respondent is subject (o disciplinary action under section 2238 of the Code, in that he 

22 violated Health and Safety Code section 11154. The circumstances are as follows: 

23 A. Respondent repeatedly prescribed narcotics and controlled drugs on an ongoing 

24 basis for profit without medical indication, an examination or otherwise determining a medical 

25 reason to prescribe opioids. See Declaration oflnvestigator Veronica Corona, para. 4. 

26 II/ 

27 I I I 

28 
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2 

3 9. 

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Unprofessional Conduct - Prescribing Dangerous Drugs without 

Prior Examination or Medical Indication) 

As set fmth in the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, attached hereto as 

4 Exhibit B, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 2242, subdivision (a) of the 

5 Code, in that he prescribed dangerous drugs without an appropriate prior examination or medical 

6 indication. The circumstances are as follows: 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

A. Respondent repeatedly prescribed narcotics and controlled drugs on an ongoing 

basis without medicalindication, an examination or otherwise determining a medical reason to 

prescribe opioids. See Declaration oflnvestigator Veronica Corona, para. 4. 

SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Unprofessional Conduct) 

12 10. As set forth in the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, attached hereto as 

13 Exhibit B, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under 2234, subdivision (a), of the Code in 

14 that he violated provisions of the Medical Practices Act. The circumstances are as follows: 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

A. Respondent misrepresented his prescribing of controlled substances to the 

Board. Respondent's misrepresentations are unprofessional conduct, in violation of the Medical 

Practice Act. See Declaration of Investigator Veronica Corona, para. 4; Declaration of Ruben 

Garcia, para. 2. 

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Dishonest Acts Constituting Unprofessional Conduct) 

21 11. As set forth in the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, attached hereto as 

22 Exhibit B, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 2234, subdivision (e), of the 

23 Code in that he engaged in dishonest acts substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or 

24 duties of a physician and surgeon. The circumstances are as follows: 

25 A. Respondent wrote prescriptions and failed to record those prescriptions in a 

26 controlled substances prescription log, as required by thetenns of his probation, thereby seeking 

27 to hide those prescriptions from the Boai·d. Respondent's failure to properly record the 

28 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

prescriptions was an act of dishonesty substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or 

duties of a physician and surgeon and is a violation of section 2234, subdivision ( e), of the Code. 

See Declaration oflnvestigator Veronica Corona, para. 4; Declaration of Ruben Garcia, para. 2. 

EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Failure to Maintain Adequate aud Accurate Records) 

6 12. As set forth in the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, attached hereto as 

7 Exhibit B, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 2266 of the Code in that he 

8 failed to maintain adequate and accurate medical records. The circumstances are as follows: 

A. Respondent failed to keep an accurate Controlled Substances log as required. 9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Declaration of Ruben Garcia, para. 2. 

I. 

FIRST CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION 
(Violation of Terms of Probation) 

Respondent's probation is subject to revocation because he failed to comply with 

14 Probation Conditions as set forth in the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, attached 

15 hereto as Exhibit B. The facts and circumstances regarding this violation are as follows: 

16 A. Respondent failed to keep the records required by the tenns of his probation 

I 7 and is therefore in violation of the probationary terms. Declaration of Ruben Garcia, para. 2. 

18 B. On or about August 3, 2015, a CURES report was obtained for Respondent· 

19 and the Controlled Substance logs that he was required to maintain as a condition of his probation 

20 in Case Number 23-2008-192858 were obtained from the Board Probation Inspector charged with 

21 monitoring Respondent's probation (S~c Declaration of Probation Monitor Rubin Garcia, 

22 para. 2); 

23 C. Multiple patients listed on the CURES reports as having been prescribed 

24 controlled substances by Respondent were not reflected on Respondent's Controlled Substance 

25 logs during 2014. Several patients were selected for further investigation, including A.A., S.B., 

26 T.M., W.P., J.R., A.C., and D.G. (See Declaration of Probation Monitor Rubin Garcia, para. 2); 

27 111 

28 111 
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1 D. On or about August 6, 2015, original prescriptions written by Respondent for 

2 patients A.A., S.B., T.M., W.P., and J.R., were obtained (See Declaration of Probation Monitor 

3 Rubin Garcia, para. 2); 

4 E. On or about August 10, 2015, original prescriptions written by Respondent for 

5 patients A.C. and D.G. were obtained (See Declarati0n of Probation Monitor Rubin Garcia, para. 

6 2); 

7 F. None of the original prescriptions written by Respondent for A.A., S.B., T.M., 

8 W.P., J.R., A.C., and D.G. and obtained as part of the investigation of Respondent were listed in 

9 Respondent's Controlled Substance logs submitted to the Board Probation Inspector charged with 

10 monitoring Respondent's probation in 2014 (See Declaration of Probation Monitor Rubin Garcia, 

11 para. 2); 

12 G. The Controlled Substances log submitted to the Board Probation Inspector 

13 charged with monitoring Respondent's probation, and certified as accurate by Respondent, 

14 contained only 1 prescription for J.R., A.C., and D.G., but the CURES reports showed more than 

15 1 prescription written by Respondent for each of those patients (See Declaration of Probation 

16 Monitor Rubin Garcia, para. 2); 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

H. The controlled substances log submitted to the Board Probation Inspector 

charged with monitoring Respondent's probation, and certified as accurate by Respondent, 

contained no record of any prescriptions for A.A., S.B., T.M., and W.P., but the CURES reports 

showed prescriptions written by Respondent for each of those patients (See Declaration of 

Probation Monitor Rubin Garcia, para. 2); 

2. 

SECOND CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION 
(Obey All Laws) 

Respondent's probation is subject to revocation because he failed to comply with 

25 Probation Conditions as set forth in the Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, attached 

26 hereto as Exhibit B. The facts and circumstances regarding this violation are as follows: 

27 A. Respondent failed to obey all laws as required by the terms of his probation. 

28 See Declaration of Investigator Veronica Corona, para. 4; Declaration of Ruben Garcia, para. 2. 
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1 ORDER 

2· TT IS SO ORDERED that Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. A86714, heretofore 

3 issued to Respondent Daniel K. Cham, M.D., is revoked. 

4 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondent Daniel K. Cham, M.D., pay to the Board 

5 $14,751.00 in costs related to his probation monitoring and related violations. 

6 Pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subdivision ( c ), Respondent may serve a 

7 written motion requesting that the Decision be vacated and stating the grounds relied on within 

8 seven (7) days after service of the Decision on Respondent. The agency in its discretion may 

9 vacate the Decision and grant a hearing on a showing of good cause, as defined in the statute. 

10 This Decision shall become effective on May 12, 2017 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

11 It is so ORDERED. April 13, 2017. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

KIMBERLY KIRCJIMEYER, Executive Director 
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KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attomey General of California 
E. A. JONllslII 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
RANDALLR. MURPHY 
Depi.1ty Attorney General 
StateBarNo.1651!51 

Calif9rnia Department of Justice 
300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702 
Los Angeles, California 90013 
Telephone: (213) 897-2493 
Faos1mile: (213) 897-9395 

.Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALlFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In tJieMatter·ofthe Amended Accusation and 
Petitlon tc Revoke Probation Against: 

Daniel K. Cham, M.D. 
1014 S Marengo Ave.;Unlt 6 
Alhambra, CA 91803 

Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate 
No. A86714, 

Roop on dent. 

Complainant alleges: 

Case No. 800-2015,016097 

AMENDEDACCUS A TION AND 
PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION 

l'ARTIIJ;§. 

1. Kimberly Klrchmeyer (Complainant) brings this Amended Acousatioll and Petition to 

Revoke Probation solely in her official capacity as the Executive Director of the MedlcaJ Boiu·d 

of California (Board). 

2. On April 14, 2004, the Board issued Physician's 'Uld Stirgeon's Certificate number 

i\86714 to Daniel K. Chrun, M.D. (Respondent). That Certificate w.as in full fot•ce and effect at 

all times relevant to the chaxges brought herein fllld expired on November 30, 2015. 

II 

II 

II 
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3. In a disciplinary action titled "Jn the Matter of the Accusation Against Daniel Kwok 

2 Cham, MD.," Case No. 23-2008-192858, the Board Issued a decision, effective Jime 6, 2012, in 

3 which Respondent's Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate was revoked. However, that 

4 revocation was stayed and his licettse was placed on probation for a period of five (5) years wifu 

5 certain terms and conditions. A copy of that decision is attached as Exhibit A and is incorporated 

6 by reference. 

7 4. fii. a prior investigatory matter, Case No. 20-2010-204533, the Board issued a Publio 

8 Letter of Reprimand, effective September 13, 2010, to Respondent. 

9 JURISDICTION 

10 5. This Amended Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation (Accusation) Is brought 

11 before the Board under the authority of the following provisions of the Callfo1nia Business and 

12 Professions Code (Code) u.11less othetwlse indicated. 

13 6. The Medical Practice Act (Act) fa codified at sections 200()..2521 of the Business and 

14 Professions Code. 

LS 

16 

17 

7. Ptu·suant to Code· sect.ion 2001.1, the Board's highest priority is public pmtection. 

8. Section 2004 of the Code states: 

"The board. shall have the responsibility for the following: 

18 "(a) Tho enforcement of the disciplinary and criminal provisions of the Medical 

19 Practice Acl. 

20 "(b) The administration and hearing of disciplinary actlons. 

21 "(c) Carrying out disciplinary l\ctions appropriate to findings made by a panel or an 

22 administmtive law judge. 

23 "( d) Suspending, revoking, or otherwise limiting ce1·titi.cntes after the conclusion of 

24 disciplinary actio11s. 

25 "( e) Reviewing the quality of medical practice carried out by physician and s111·geon 

26 certificat~ holders under the jurisdiction of the board. 

27 

28 

u H 

2 
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8 
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10 

11 
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13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

i 24 
i 
i 25 
! 

26 

27 

28 

9. Section 2227 of the Code provides. that a licensee who is found guilty undel' the Act 

may have his or her license revoked, suspended for a period not to exceed one year, placed on 

probation and required to pay the costs of probation monitoring, or such other action tllken in 

relatio11 to dL~cipline as the Boai·d deems proper. 

10. Section 2234 of the Code, states: 

"The boiu·d shall take action against any licensee who is chm:ged with unprofessional 

conduct. In addition to other provisions of this article, tmpl'ofessionai conduct inoludes, but is not 

limited to, the following: 

"(a) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, assisting in or abetting 

the violation of, or conspiring to violate any provision of this chapter. 

"(b) Gross negligence. 

"(c) Repeated negligent acts. To be repeated, tl1ere must be two or more negligent 

acts or omissions. An initial negligent act or omission followed by a sepamte and distinct 

departure from the· applicable standard. of care shall constitute repeated negligent acts. 

"(1) An initial negligent diagnosis followed by an act or omission medically 

appropriate for th!l.l negligent diagnosis of 1he patient shall constitute a.single 

negligent act: 

''(2) When the standard of care requil-es a change In the diagnosis, act, or 

omission that constitutes the negligent act described in piu·agraph (1), including, but 

not limited to, a reevaluation of the diagrtosis or a change in treatment, ond the 

licensee's conduot departs from the applicable standard of oare, each depm·ture 

constitutes a separate and distinct b1·cach of the standard of care. 

"(d) Incompetence. 

"(e) The commission ofany act involving dishonesty or corruption which is 

substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a physician and su1'.gaon. 

"(f) Any action or conduct which would have wimanted the denial of a certificate. 

"(g) The practice of medicine from this state into another stll(e or country without 

meeting the legal requ.irements of that state or comitry for the practice of medicine. Section 
3 
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2314 shall not apply to this subdivision. This subdivision shall become operative upon the 

2 implementation of the proposed registration program clescrlbe<l in Section 2052.5. 

3 "(h) The repeated failure by a certificate holder, in the absence of good cause, to 

4 attend and pmticipate In an interview by the board. This si1bdivision ·shall only apply to a 

s certificate holder who is the subject of an investigation by the board." 

6 11. Sectlon 2242 of the Code states: 

7 "(a) Prescribing, dispensing, or flU'nishlng dangerous dmgs as defined in Section 4022 

g without an appropriate pri01· examination and a medical indication, constitutes unprofessional 

9 conduct. 

to "(b) No licensee shall be found to have committed unprofessional conduct within the 

11 meaning of this section if, at the time the drugs were prescribed, dispensed, or furnished, any of 

12 the following applies; 

13 "(1) The licensee was a de.~ignated physician and surgeon or podiatrist serving in the 

14 absence of the patient's physician and surgeon or pocliatl'ist, as the case may be, and if the drugs 

15 we:rn prescribed, dispensed, or fumishcd only as necessary to maintain the patient until the return 

1 G of his or her practitioner, but in any case no longer thm1 72 hours. 

17 "(2) TI1e licensee transmitted the order for the drugs to a registered niuse or to a licensed 

18 vocational nurse it1 an inpatient faoility, and if both of the following conditions exist: 

19 "(A) TI1e practitioner had consulted with the registered nurse or licensed vocational 

20 nmse who had reviewed the patienfs records. 

21 "(B) The practitioner was designated as the pTactitioner tc} serve in the absence of the 

22 patient's physician and surgeon or podiau·ist, as the case may be. 

23 "(3) The licensee was a designated practitioner serving in tl1e absence \1fihe patient's 

24 physician and surgeon or podiatrist, as the case may be, and was in possession of or had utilized 

25 the patient's 1·ecords and ordered the renewal of a medically indicated prescription for an amoimt 

26 not exceeding the original prescription in strength or amount or for more than one refill. 

27 "(4). The licensee wa,g acting in acoordanoe with Section 120582 of the Health and Safety 

28 Code." 
4 
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1 12. Section 2266 of the Code srotes: "The failure of a physician and sui·geon to maintain 

2 adequate and. accurate records relating to the provision of services to their patients constitutes 

3 rm professional conduct." 

4 13. Health and Safety Code section 11154 states: 

5 "(a) Except in the regular practice of his or her professlori, no person shall lmowingly 

6 prescdbe, administer, dispense, or fumish a controlled substance to or for any pe1·son or animal 

7 which is not under his or her treatment for a pathology or condition o1her than addiction to a 

8 controlled substance, except as provided in this division." 

9 14. Health and Safety Code section 11173 states Jn relevant part: 

JO "(a) No pe!'son shall obtaJn orattempt to obtain controlled substances, or procure or 

11 attempt to procure the administration of or p1·escriptlon for controlled substances,(!) by fraud, 

12 deceit, misrepresentation, or subterfuge; or (2) by the concealment of a matedal fact, 

13 (b) No person shall make a false statement in any prescrlptlou, 01·der, repor1, or 

14 record, required by this division." 

[5 FACTS 

16 15. On 01· ~bout August 3, 2015, a CURES 1·epo1'1 was obtained fol' Respondent and the 

17 ControlJed Substance prescribing logs that he was requi!'ed to maintain as a condition of his 

18 probation in Case Number 23-2008-192858 were obtained from the Board Probation lnspector 

19 charged with monitoring Respondent's probation. 

20 16. Multiple patients listed on the CURES 1·eports as having been prescribed eontrolled 

21 substruwes by Respondent were not reflected on Respondent's Con1rollcd Substance logs during 

22 . 2014. Several patients were selected for further investigation, including A.A., S.B., T.M., W.P., 

23 .T.R., A.C., and D.G. 

24 17.. On or about August 6, 2015, original prescriptions wl'itten by Respondent for patients 

25 A.A., S.B., T.M., W.P., and J.R., were obtained. 

26 18. On or about August 10, 2015, original prescriptions written by Reap011dent for 

27 patients A.C. and D.G, were o~ta.ined.' 

28 Ill 
5 
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1 l 9, None of the original prescriptions written by Respondent for A.A,, S.B,, T,M., W,P., 

2 J.R,, A,C., and D.G. and obtained as part of the investigation of Respondent were listed in 

3 Respondent's Controlled Substance logs submitted to the Board Probation Inspector charged with 

4 monitoring Respondent's probation in 2014, 

S 20, The Controlled Substances Jog submitted to the Board Probation Inspector charged 

6 with monitoring Respondent's probation, and certified as acomate by Respondent, contained only 

7 1 prescriptionfoi:J.R., A.C,, andD.G,, but the CURES reportl! showed morn than 1 prescription 

8 · written by Respondent for each of those patients, 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

21. The controlled substances log submitted to the Board Probation Inspector charged 

with monitoring Respondent's probation, and certified as accurate by Respondent, contained no 

record of any prescriptions for AA., S,B.,. T,M., and W.P ., but the CURES repmis showed · 

. prescriptions written by Respondent for each of those patients. 

22. On or about October 23, 2014, Respondent was arrested on numerous federal felony 

charges involving prescribing controlled substances, including violations of: 21 U.S,C. §§ 841(a) 

(1), (b) (l)(C), (b)(l)(E) and (b)(2) (Distribution and Possession with lntent to Distribute 

Oxycodone, l-lydrocodone, Alprazolam, and Carisoprodol; 18 U,S,C. § 1956 (a)(l)(B)(i) (Money 

Laundering); 21 U,S.C. § 843 (a)(4)(A} (False and Fraudulent Information in an Application to 

Renew a DEA Registration Number); 18 U ,S,C. § J 00 I (a)(2) (False Statement to a Federal 

Officer or Agency); 21 U,S,C. §843(a)(3) (Acquiring a Controlled Substance by 

Misrepresentation, Fraud, Forgery, Deception, or Subterfuge), und; 1 & U.S,C, §2(a) (Aiding and 

Abetting). (A true and cm1·ect copy oftbe w1derlying indictment nnd the Report Commencing 

Cl'irninal Action against Respondent are nttachecl ht-·rnto as Exhibit E.) 

23, Sl10rlly after his arJ'est Respondent was released on bond, On or about September l 0, 

2015, Respondent was ordered detained due to numerous violations of his 01·der ofPretriai 

Release. He was then remanded to the custody of the Federal Bureau of Prisons. He is currently 

incarcerated at the Los Angeles Metropolitan Detention Center, located at 535 North Alameda 

· Street, Los Angelos, Cruifor11ia. His petition for re-release on bond was denied, 
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24. On or about March 24, 2016, Respondent agreed to plead guilty to counts one and ten 

of the indictment in United States v. Daniel Cham, CR No. 14-591-DDP, Case 2:14-cr-00591, 

which charges defendant; as to 0011nt one, with distribution of oxycodone, in violation of Titfo 21, 

United States Code, Sections 84 l(a)( l ), (b)(l )(C); and, as to count ten, with money laundering, in 

vlolation of Title 18, United States Code, Section l 956(a)(l)(B)(i). 

25. In addition to the over-pr6Scribingthat is the focus oftlie federal indictment, 

Resp~ndent has also been ove.r prescribing dangerous drugs to many of his patients, without the 

benefit of a good faith medical examination. 

26. The Board received inf01'tnation from the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) 

that Respendent wa.s prescribing controlled substances without medical necessity. During the 

cot1rse of the DEA's investigation, several undercover (UC) operations were conducted. 

27. Duling the UCs, Respondent provided the officer$ with prescriptions for controlled 

substances without doing physical exan1s 01· taking histories. 1 

28. During the UC's, Respondent would ask what medications they wanted and what they 

were for. No physical examination took place. Respondent did the exact same thh1g for all 

UC's. 

29. Dr. C., the DEA medical expert opined that: 

"In my opinion, based on tl1e undercover DVD AUDIONIDEOS, tlicre is gross and 

overwhelming evidence of inappropriate prescribing of mrrcotics and co!ltrolled di:ugs by DR 

CHAM based on the types of drugs seen on C.U.R.E.S data (OPIATES, SEDATIVES, 

BENZODIAZEPENES like XANAX; and ADDICTIVE MUSCLE RELAXERS liko SOMA) 

being prescribed. The undercover patient, MR V., who visited DR. CHAM's office, lacked any 

objective obvious severe pain clinically and never cleru:ly presented or described his pain in a 

.manner that justified the need for being prescribed controlled opioid analgesic 1nedications ,. [sic] 

There were no findings oi: clinical syndromes diagnosed, atul no objective evidence of pain to 

spealc of, and theref01'e no Justification for the use of doctor pJ'escribcd opioid medication therapy. 

1 The foots set out in this portion of the Amended Accusation m·e bMed on the federal 
indictment handed down and to be produced in Discovery. 
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There was no effort by DR. CHAM to try no11-adclictive medications 01· offer alternative 

adj.unctive modalities of therapy.· The World Health Organization recommendations for pain 

treatment are that opiate analgesic treatment be limited to, and only offered after, failure to 

re.~pond to i·outlne non-opiate medications or offer altemative adjunctive modalities of therapy, 

DR. CHAM did not do 1·egular or random urine drug screens, nor did he order labs or diagnostic 

workup, and he failed to do an appropriate and' focused pain evaluation in order to identify and 

match whether MR .. V. suffered from underlying pain generators. 

"DR. CHAM's behavior is seen and heatd on the UNDERCOVER DVD CD AUDIO/ 

VISUAL materials clearly and represents an EXTREME DEP AR 1URE from tho standmd of care 

expected of a licensed practicing physician Jn the U.S. today, Based on these findings mid the 

:findings of the C.U.R.E.S REPORT DATA, it is apparent that DR. CHAM's clinical approach to 

pain management is primarily to prescribe. whatever controlled medications are requested by the 

patie11t for profit. In addition, based on the letter of reprimand aud the previous medfoal board 

deliberations released publically regarding inappropriate presmibing of nai·cotics over the 

internet, it is unlikely that DR. CHAM will Change [sic] his behavior ai1d use hls talents for tlie 

public good, One would think that given a second Chance [sic] that he would not repeat his 

actions. This history is included in this rep()rt and must be considere\l when reviewing the current 

information." 

!1IRST CAUSF. FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Unprofos.~iollfll Conduct - Gross Negligence) 

30, Respondent is subject to discipUnru:y action und<:<r Code sectioll 2234, subdivision (b), 

for gross negligence .in the care and treatment of patients A.A., S.B., T.M., W.P., J.R., A.C., and 

D.G. The circums1ances are as follows: 

31. Paragraphs 15 through :49 are incorporated herein by reference as if folly set forth 

herein. 

32. Respondent foiled to provide proper oversight in order to monitor the use of 

controlled substances by A.A., S.B., T.M., W.P., J.R., A.C., and D.O., which constiMes gross 

negligence and is n violation of section 2234, subdivision (b ). 
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33, Respondent failed to maintain controlled substances medical records fO!' A.A., S.B., 

2 T.M., W.P., J.R., A.C., and D.G., and therefo1·e failed to provide propet· oversight in order to 

3 monitor the use of controlled substances by A.A., S.B., T.M., W.P., J.R., A.C., and D.G., which 

4 constitutes gross negHgence and is a violation of section 2234, subdivision (b). 

5 34. Respondent failed to perform any prior examination for the prescription of 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

'13 

14 

15 

16 

controlled substan~ to A.A.; S.B., T.M., and W.P., which constitutes gross negligence and Js.a 

violation of section 2234, subdivision (b). 

SECOND CA USE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Unprofessional conduct· Repeated Negligent Acts) 

35. By reason of the matters set forth above in paragraphs 15 tlu:ough 34, incorporated 

herein by this referenee, Respondent ls subj~ct lo disciplinary action under Code section 2234, 

subdivision (c), for repeated negligent acts in the care and trea1ment of A.A., S.B., T.M., and 

W .P, The circumsmnces at'e 11s follows: 

36. Respondent did not perform ai1 app1:opriate prior examination before prescribing high 

dose opioid therapy to A.A., S.B., T.M., and W.P. Respondent's failure to properly examine any 

of the foregoing patients while prescribing numerous medications constitutes repeated negligent 

17 . acts and a violation of Code section 2234, subdivision (c). 
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37, Respondent failed to provide proper oversight 4i order to monitor the use of 

cnnl:!'oltcd substances by A.A.; S.B., T.M,, and W.P., which, in conjunction with Respondent's 

other negligent acts, constitutes a violation of Code section 2234, subdivision ( c ). 

38. Responde.nt's reco1·d.s for A.A., S.B., T.M., and W.P, show no.office visits and 

therefore no physical exmnination findings, whloh, in conjunction with.Respondent's nthCI' 

negligent acts1 oonstitutes a vinlution of Code section 2234, subdivision (c). 

THIRD CAUSJJ~ FOR OlSCIPLINE 
(l.Jnprofossio)Ul\ Conduct- Proscribhtg Controlled Substances without Medical Indicntion) 

39. By reaso11 of the matters set foxth above in paragraphs 15 through 3 8; incorporated 

herein by this reference, Respondent Is subject to disciplinary action unde1: sectiun l l !54 of the 

He!11th and Safety Code, fo tlmt he prescribed controlled substances without medical indication, 
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1 The circumstances are as follows: 

2 40. Respondent never performed a complete history and physical exam over the course of 

3 treatment for patients A.A., S.B., T.M,, and W.P., yet continued to prescribe controlled 

4 substances to those patients, which prescl'ibing prnctice constl!t1tes proscribing controlled 

5 substances without medical indication and fo a violation of Health and Safety Code section 11154. 

6 41. Respondent never ordered sta11dard tests and follow up, nor established mi 
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21 

appropriate differential diagnoses over the course of treatment for patientsA.A., S.B., T.M., and 

W.P., yet continued to prescribe controlled substances to those patients, which prescribing 

practice constitutes prescribing controlled substances without medical indication and ls a 

violation of Health and Safety Code section 11 [54. 

l!'OURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Unprofessional Conduct - Violating Statute Regulating Controlled Substn11ce11) 

42, By reason of the matters set forth above in paragraphs 15 .througb-41, incorpornted 

herein by this reference, Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 2238 of the 

Code, in th.,,t he violated Health and Safoty Code section 11J54. The circmnstances are as 

follows: 

43. Respondent prescribed controlled substances without medicaUndica.tionto A.A., 

S'.B., T.M., anci W.P., which constitutes a violat/on of Health and Safety Code section 11154 and, 

thus, section 2238 of the Code. 

FIJDJI CAUSE llOR DISCIPUNE 
(Unprofessional Conduct" Prescribing Dangerous Drug.~ without 

Prior Examination or Medical In<liclltion) 

22 44. By reason of the matters set forth above in p•ll'agraphs 15 through 43, incorporated 

23 herein by this reference, Respondent is subject to disciplinary nctiun under Cod~ section 2242, 

24 subdivision (a) of the Code, in that he prescribed dangerous drugs without an appropriate prior 

25 examination and a medical indication to A.A., S.B., T.M., and W.P. The circumsl!mces are as 

26 follows: 

27 45. Respondent prescribed dangerous drngs without pe1formh1g an appropriate pri~r 

28 examination to A.A., S.B., T.M., IUld W.P. Respondent's failure to propedy exmnino miy of the 
10 
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foregoing patients while prescribing dangerous .drugs to those patients constitutes a violation of 

Code section 2242, subdivision (a). 

46. Respondent prescribed dangel'ous drngs to A.A., S.B., T.M., a11d W.P., without 

medical indication, which actions constitute a violation of Code section 2242, subdivision (a.). 

~IXTH CAUSE FOR DISCil'LlNE 
(Unprafessional Conduct) 

47. Respondent is subject to dlsciplinary action under Code section 2234, subdivision (a), 

of the Code in that he violated provisions of the Act. 1be· circumstances are as follows: 

48. Paragrapb,g 15 through 46 are incorporated herein by reference· as if fully·set forth 

herein. 

49, The Medical Practice Act requires the Board to review the quality ofmedioal practice 

cwied out by. physician and surgeon ce1ilficute holders. under the jurisdiction of !be Board. 

Respondent misrepresented his prescribing of controlled substances to the Board. Respondent's 

mistep1;esentations arn unprofessional conduct, in violation of the Medical Practice Aot. 

§];VENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Dishonest Acts Constituting U11professlo1U1l Conduct) 

50. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action.unde1· section 2234, subdivision (c), of 

·tho Code in that he engaged io dishonest acts substantially related to the qualifications, functions, 

01· duties ofa physician and surgeon. The ciroumstances are as follows: 

51. Pawgraphs 15 thmugh 49 are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth 

herein. 

52, Respondent wrote proscriptions for patients A.A., S.B., T.M., W.P., J.R.., A.C., and· 

D,G., and foiled to rncord those prescriptions in a controlled substances presciiption log, as 

required by the terms o:f his probation, thereby seeking to hide tho.se prescriptions from the Board. 

H.espondent' s failure to properly record tlie prescriptions' was an act of dishonesty Stibst&ntially 

related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a physlchm and surgeon and is a violation of 

section 2234, subdivision (e), of the Code. 

Ill 
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:EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
(Failure to Maintain Adequate and Accurat0 Reco1·ds) 

53. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 2266 in that he foiled to 

maintain adequate and accurate.medicn.l records for patients A.A., S.B., T.M., W.P., J.R'., A.C., 

and D,G. The circumstances are as follows: 

54, Paragraphs 15 through 52 are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth 

herein. 

55. Respondent failed to keop an acC1.1rate Controlled Substances 'log for patients A.A., . 
S.B., T.M., W.P., J.R., A.C., and D.G. Respondent's failure to maintain adequate and accurate 

medical records fol' patients A.A., S.B., T.M., W.P., .T.R., A.C., and D.G., ls n violation of section 

2266 of the Code. 
FIRST CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATlON 

(Violation of Te1111s of P1·obation) 

56. Respondent's probation ls subject to revocation because he failed to oomply with 

Probation Conditio11 F., set forth below. The facts and circumstances regarding this violation are 

~s follows: 

57, Paragraphs 15 through 55 are incorporated herein by reference as if fuliy set forth 

here.in and the allegations of the First, Second and Third Causes for Discipline are incorporated 

by reference as if set forth in foll. 

58. At all times after tho effective date of Respondent's probation, Condition F., stated in 

part: 

"Respondent shn.11 maintain a record of all controlled substaMcs orde1·ed, J>r~scribcd, 

dispensed, administered, or possessed by respondent, and •my recornmendatioll orappl'C>val which 

enables a patient 01· patient's prhnary caregiver to possess or cultivate. murijuami for the personal 

med.icnl purposes of the patient wifuin the meaning of Health and Safoty Code section 11362.5, 

during prob~tion, showing all the foliowing: 

"I) the name and nd<lress of patient; 

"2) the date; 

"3) the character and quantity of controlled substances involved; and 
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1 "4) the indications and diagnosis for which the contmlled subatanccs:were n1111ished. 

2 "Respondent shall keep these records in a separate file or ledger, in ohronological order. All 

3 records and any inventories of controlled substances shall be available for immediate inspection 

4 and copying on the premises by the Board or its designee at all times duling b11siness hours and 

5 shall be retained for the entire term of probation. Failure to maintain all records, to provide 

6 Jmrnediate access to the inventory, qr to mal<e all records available fo1· immediate inspection and 

7 · copying on the premise.~. is a violation of probation." 

59. Respondent failed to keep the required records and is therefore in violation of 

pl'Obationary term F. 

8 

9 

10 
SECOND CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION 

(Obey All Lnws) 

11 60. At all times after the effectivodate of Respondent's probation, Condition I. stated in 

12 part: "Respondent shall obey all federal, state and local .laws [and] all mies governing the 

13 pl'actice of medicine in California .... " 

14 61. Respondent's probation is subject to revocation because he failed tq comply with 

15 Probation Condition I., referenced above>. The facts mid circumstances regarding this violation 

16 are as :follows: 

I 7 62. Paragraphs 15 through 59 are incorporated herein by i·eforence as if fully set forth 

I 8 herein and tbc allegatio.ns of the First, Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, Sev011th and Eighth 

19 Causes for Discipline are incorporated by rnference as if set forth in full. 

20 PRAYER 

21 WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on U1c matt01·s herein alleged, 

22 mid that following the hearing, the Medical Board of California Issue a decision:. 

23 1. Revoking the probation tbat was granted in Case No. 23-2008-192858 and imposing 

24 the disciplinary order that was stayed, thereby revoking Physician's and Surgeo11's Certificate 

25 · Number A86714, issued to Daniel K, Cham, M.D.: 

26 2. Revoking or suspending his Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. A86714; 

27 3. Revoking, suspending or denying approval of his aui11ority to supervise physician 

28 
13 
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assistants, pursuant to section 3527 of the Code;. 

2 4. If placed on pl'Obation, ordering him to pay the Board the costs of probation 

3 monitor.ing; and 

4 5. Taking such other and ftrrtl1er action as deemed neces aty and proper, 

.5 

6 DATED: ..l!laif.<-03~, ~2""DCJ-1.u6 ___ _ 
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BEFORE THE 
MEDICAL BOARD OF CAUFORNIA 

DEPAR'l'MENT OF CONSUMER Al<'FAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Ill the Matter of the Accusation 
. Against: 

) 
) 
) 

Daniel IC. Cham, M.D. 

Physician's and Snrgeon's 
Certificate No. A 86714 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. 23-2008-192858 

... ·-··)--··-·>-· . ······· ··-···-~-·--·-······· . 

DECISIQN 

··---·······--·-······-·--

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Oiaciplinury Order is Jioreby ad<>plcd as 
tho Decision and OrdeJ' of the Medical Board of California, Department of Consnmcr 
Affairs, State of California. 

This Decision shall become effective nt 5:00 p.11i. 011 June 6, 2017, 

IT IS SO ORDERED: May 7, 2012. 

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALJli'ORNIA 

~~~ 
Shelton Duruisseau, Ph.D., Chair 
Panel A 
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KAMALA D. HARRIS, 
Attorney General of California 
ROBERT McKlM BELL 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 56332 

· KLINT JAMES M<:KA Y 
Deputy Attorney Genetal 
State Bar No. 12088! 

300 South Spring St., Suite l 702 
Lo~ Angeles, Callfornia 90013 
Tele1)ho11e: (213) 576 • 1327 
Facsimile: (213) 897 - 93 95 

Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
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ST ATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Accusation Agalnst: 
MBC Case No. 23·2008-192858 

DANIEL K. CHAM, M.D. 
1014 S. Marengo Avenue, Unit 6 
Alhambra, California 91803 

Physician & Surge.en's Certificate 
No A 86714, 

Respondent 

AG Case No. LA 2010503647 

OAH Case-No. 2010120870 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND 
DISClPLINARY ORDEll. 

In the lnte!'est of a prompt and speedy settlement ·of this matter, consistent with the public 

interest and the"responsibl.lity ·of the Medical Board of California ofihe Department of Consumer 

Affairs ("Boa!'d"), the patties hereby agree to the following Stipulated Settleme11t and 

Discipllnal'y Ol'deJ· which will be submitted to the Boru:d fo1· approval and udoption as the final 

disposition of the Accusation. 

PARTIES 

J. Linda K. Whitney ("Complainant") is.the Executive Director of the Bou!'d, and 

the Co111plainar1l in this Il)att~r. Ms. Whitney brought this action solely i.tJ. her official capacity 

and is represented in .this matter tlU'ough Kamala D. Hai1·is;_Attorney Oen~ral of the Stale of 

California, by Klint James McKay, Deputy Attorney General, 

stipulated Settlortient und Disolp!lnary Order 
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2. Respondent Daniel K. Cham, M.D., ("Respondent") ls represented by Hemy 

2 Fe11to11 of Fenton and Nelson in this P,r6ceedi11g, 

3 3. On or abo\lt,Aprll 14, 2004, the Boa.I'd issued Physician and Surgeon's 

4 Certificate Number A 867 \4 to Daniel K. Ch!lln, M.D. ("Respondent"). The Certificate was in 

5 full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought he1·ein. It will expire on 

6 November 30, 2011, unless re1tewed. 

7 JURlSDICTIQN 

8 4. Accusation No. 23-2008-192858 was filed before the Board, and ls currently 

---· ... ·- ···-··--·-9-- .. Pm.d.ing_~gain§L!l&~91Jde.P..!,. Th~ AECJ!~~tion antj_~)! 9.ths:r stat1®xl!Y.X~m1lred docum..eJJ~.w~re 
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properly served on Respondent on Pecembet· 15, 2009, Respondent'timely filed his Notice of 

. Defense contesting the Acoi1satlo11. A copy of Accusation No. 23-2008-192858 is attached as 

Exhibit A and incorporated herein by 1·eference. 

.ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

.5. Respondent has cal'efu!ly read, has been given!he opportunity to fully discuss 

the provisions hereofwitb coUllsel if he so desired, and understands the charges and allegations in 

Accusation No, 23-2008-192858, Respondent has also oareftilly read, has been given_ the 

opportunity to fully discuss the provisions hereof with counsel if he so desired, and undmtands 

the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order. 

6. Respondent ls fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, _including the right to 

a hem'ing on the charges and ullegations in the Accusation; the right to be. represented by counsel 

at his own expense; th_e right to·confront ftl1d ctos.s .. exa111in~ the witnesses against hini.; the right to 

present evidence m1d to testify on his own behalf; the right to the iBsuance of subpoenas to 'cotnpcl 

the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to reconsideration aud. 

court review of an ad-verse decision; and all other rlghlll accorded by tho California 

Administrative Prncedure Act and other applicable laws., 

Respondent voluntarily, knowingly,' and intelligently waives and gives up each 

and every right set fo!'th above. 

II I 
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CULPABlLITY 

2 7. Respondent understands and agrees that the charges ai1d aliegati011s h1 Accusation 23-

3 2008-192858, if prnven at a herufog, constit11te cause for imposing discipline upon his Physician 

4 and Surgeon's Ce1tlficate, 

5 8,, Fo1· the piu:pose of resolving the Accusation without the exp~nse and unoe1tai11ty of 

6 further proceedings, .P!a.l.utiff admits that at a hearing, Complainant could establish a prim a /ac/e 

7 case for each atid every allegatlon in the Accusation; Respondent hereby gives up bis righfto 

8 co11test those charges. 

9 · ... 9.: ...... ~-~P?.J!_dent agrees th~t if, in_~11j __ fyture1 ~ _1!C'.'Y:.A~.<ltlsat[o11 or ~etit\~m to Revoke' ____ -··---

1 O Probation is filed against him before the Board, all of the charges and aUegations contained ln 
! . 
' 11 Accusation No. 1.3-2008-191.858 shall be deemed true, can-eot and fully admitted by Respo11dent 

J 2 for purposes of auy such proceeding or any· other licensing proceeding involving Respondent in 

13 the State of Califomia. 

14 10. This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order ls intended.by the parties herein to 

J 5 be an integrated wcitlt1g representing 1hc complete, final and exclusive embodiment of the 

16 agreements of the pal'ties in the above-entitled matter. · 

17 11, Respondent ag1.·ees thathls Physician and Surgeon's Ce1tificate ls subject to discipl.ine 

18 and he agrees to be bound by the Board's Imposition of discipline as ·set fol'tl1 in-the Disciplinary 

19 Order below. 

20 ,CQNTJNG)l!NCV 

21 12. Tl1is Stipulation shall be subject 10 appl'Oval by th<' Board. Re"J>o11de111 

22 undei'stai1ds and agree~ thal counsel for Comrlninllllt and tl1e staff of the Board may communicate 

23 directly with the Boru·d regarding this Stipulation and_ settlement, without notice to or 

I 
24 pm1icipation by Resp011dent or his counsel. By signing Uie Stipulation, RcspondentlmdC:rstands 

25 and agrees that he may not withdraw his agi·eement or seek to rescind die Stipulation prior to the 

26 timo the Board considers lU1d acts upon it. lfthe Board fails to adopt this Stipulation.as it$ 
: 
' 27 Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settlement IUld Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or 

28 

3 
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1 effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the parties, 

2 and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter. 

3 13. The pmties understand and agree that facsimile copies of this Stipulated 

4 Settlement and Disciplinary Ordel', including facsimile signatures thereon, shall have .the same 

5 fOJ"ce and effect as the originals. 

6 14. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and StipulatiOns, the parties agree . 

7 tbat the Board may, without further notice or formal pl'oce~ding, Issue and enter the following 

8 Disciplinary Order. 

9 15. This Stipulation shall be effoctlve, nunc pro lune, as of January 13, 2012. 
.. ' ' .. ~ ... --'----·· .. -·.--.. ·-··- --- ···--·--·· .. ' ....... -.............. ·-··· ___ .,_...__________ ______ . -.... --·--·· ....... ··-·· -·-········------ ---~-----.. -· -· ·-····•·. 

10 DISCIPLINARY QRDER 

11 16, IT lS HBREBX ORDERED that Physician anc! Surgeon's Certificate No, A 86714 

12 issued to Respomlent is rnvoked. However, the revocatlon ls stayed and Respondent is placed on 

13 probation for five years from the date set forU1 in Paragraph l S above, subject to the following 

14 terms and conditions. 

15 A. PRACTICE MONITOR 

16 i. I Within 30 calendar days of the effective .date of this Decision, Respondent shall 

l 7 submit to the Boa\'d or its.designee for p1for approval as a practice monitor(s), the name and 

18 qualifications of one or more licensed physicians 'and surgeons '~hose licenses are valid and ln 

1-9 good sta11dlng, alld who are preferably Aii:ericlil). Board ofMedioal Specialties (ABMS) certified. 

20 ii. A mo11itor shalt have no pdor or current busines9 or personal relation$hip with 

21 Respondent, or other 1·elationship that could reasm1ably be expected lo o.ompromise the ability of 

22 the monitor to render fair and unbi11scd repol'ts to the Board, including but not limited to any form 

23 . of barterfag, shall be in Res}lon<lcnt's field of practice, and mus! agree to serve as Respondent's 

24· monitor. 

25. lii. Respondent shall pay all m011ilori11g costs. The Board or its desir;nee shall provide the 

26 approved monitor with copies of the Dec.ision)and .Accusation, and a pmposod monitoring plan. 

27 Within 15 eale11dar days of receipt of the Dccision(s), Accusation(s), and pKOposed monitoring 

28 plan, the monitor shall submit a signed .ltatcment that !hti mon.itor has read the Decision(s) and 

4 
11---·-·~,-~--·-----------'------- ------------~f 
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' I 

J Accusation(s), folly w1derstands the role of a 1ponitor, and ngrees or disagrees wilb the prnposed 

2 monitoring plan. If the monitor disagrees with the proposed mo11ito1'ing plan, the monitor shall 

3 ~ubmit a revised monitoring plan with the signed statement. 

4 iv. Within 60 calendar days 9flhe effective date of this Decision, and COJ1tinuing 

5 throughout probation, Respondent's (Le., practice, billing, or practice and billing) shall be 

6 monitored by the app1'oved monitor. ReS!JOndenl shall make all records available for immediate 

7 inspection and copying on the premises by the monitor at all times during business h01.u·s and 

8 shall retain the records for U1e entire L~11·m of probation. 

9 v, The monitor(s) shall submit a quarterly written report lo the Bow·d or its designee 
···--· ~·--······ ~ ····· ···--·--·-------·--·· ... ··----------- - ------- -·····-·--·-

10 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25' 

26 

27 

28 

which includes an evaluation of Respondent's p~rformance, indicatlng whether Responde11t's 

practices are· within the standards of prnctioe of .medicine or billh;g, 01· bO'Ul, and whethe:r 

Respondent is practicing medicine safely, billing appropriately or both. 1t shall be die sole 

responsibility of Respondent to ensure that the monlio1· submits the qllarterly written repo1ts to 

the Board or its des\gnee within 10 oaJendar days after the end of the preceding quarter. 

vi. If the monitor resigns ol"is 110 longer a.vailable, Respondent shall, within 5 calendar 

days of such resignation or unavailability, submit to the Board or its deslgnea, for prior apprnval, 

the mune and qualifications of a replacement monitor who will be assuming tl1at responsibility 

withi11 15 calendar du.ys. Jf Respondent fails to obtain approval of a replaceme1l! monitor within 

60 days of the resignation 01· unavai:ability of the monitor, Respondent shall be suspended from 

the practice of medicine l\ntil a replacement monitor is approved and prnpai·ed to assu1t1e 

immediate monitoring responsibility. 

. vii. 111 the evenl Respondent fails to submit a l'Cplacernent monitor as set fortl1 in the 

preceding parngrnph, and the Board the1·efoi·e desires Lo notify RcspondenVttl therefo!'e eem:c the 

practice of medicine, Respondent shall do so witl1in 3 calendar days a:fter being so notified by the 

Board or designee. Jn lieu ofa 111onlto1·, Respond en! may purticipr1tC' )11 a professional 

enhimoement prog1·am equivalent to the one offered by the Physician Asse.ssmentand Clinical 

Education Program al tl1c University of California, San Diego School of Medicine, thi\1 includes, 

al minimum, quarterly chart review, semi.annual practice assessment. and semi"annual review 'of . . 

s 
~--~--------·-----
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; 

pl'ofessional gl'owth and oducatiml. Respondent shall pa1'liclpate in the professional enhancement 

2 pl'Qgrnm at Respondent's expense during the term of probation . 

. 3 vii!. Fai1u1·e to maintain nil records, or to make all appl'op1·iate records available for 

4 Immediate inspect\011 and copying 011 the premises, OJ' to comply with this condition ns outlined 

5 . above is a vi.olatlon ofprobatlon. · 

6 B. PRESCRIBING PRACTICES COURSE 

'l Within 60 calendar days of the effective date of this Decision, Respondent shall enroll in a 

g c~tu-se in prescribing practices, at Respondent's expense, approved 111 advance by the Board or its 

9 designee. Failure to successfully complete the oour.se during 1he first 6 months of probation is a . ·---· ·········~----~-·-~ - .. -... ~-· ............ _ .. _, ____ , __ ., .. ·--··-----·--· -··-- ---· ...... --·--- ...... -··- ·--------
JO 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

violation of probatlo11. A prescribing practices oot1rse takeJJ after the acts that gave rise to U1e 

charges in U1e Accusation, but prior to the effective date of the Decision may, Jn the sole 

discretion of the Board or its designee, be accepted towai:ds the fulfillment of this condition if the 

course would have been approved by the Boa1·d 01• its designee had the course bcen laJ<en after the 

effective date of this Decision. Respondent shall subn1it a certification of successful corn]iletiou 

ro the Board or its designee not later than 15 calendar days after successfully completing the 

course., or not later than 15 calendar days after the effective date ofthe Decision, whichever is 

later: 

C. MEDICAL RECORD KEEPING COURSil 

Withi11 60 calendar pays of the effective date of this decision, Respondent shall euroll in a 

·courne in medical record keepiJlg, at Respondent's expense, approved in advance by the Bo8J'd or 

its deslgnec. Failure to successfully c<Hnplete the course during the first 6 montbs of p1·obatio11 is 

a viofo:tion of probation. A mCJdical record keeping comse taken af\er the acts that gave rise to the 
. . 

charges in the Accusuti.on, but prior to the effootlve date oftbe Decision may, in the sole 

dlsciet1on of the Board or its designee, be accepted towards the fulfillmeryt oftltls condition lf the 

co11rse would have bpen approved by the Board or its designee had the coprse been takenBfter tl1e 

effeGtive date of this Decision. Respondc!)t shall submit a certjfication of successful completion 

to the Board or its design1:e notl ater.than 15 calendar days iiftor successfolly completing the 

6 
---~-----·---

"Stipulated Settlmnent and Dls.clplioary Order 

Cham, Daniel K., M.D. 5/4/16 



2 
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5 
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8 
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10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

l.5 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

n 
23 

24 

25 

1 26 

27 

28 

course, or not later than 15 calendar days after the effective date of the Decision, whichever is 

later. 

D. ETHICS COURSE 

Within 60 calendar daJ'l! of the effootive date ofihis Decision, Respondent shall enroll In a 
.. 

course in ethics, at Respondent's expense, approved in advance by the Bomd or it• designee. 

Failure to successfully complete the course durlng the first year of probation is a violation of 
. . 
probation. An ethics course taken after the acts that gave rise to .the charges· in the Accqsation, b11t 

prior to the effective date of tho Decision may, in the sale discretion of.the Bomd or its desig11ee, 

.!l~Jl9~_p~~JP.Vf.ll-1'.(/B the ful:@)llgnt ofthis.!J.o.Qc\l!;ion if th.~ 09\t\'.fle would h~YS\_)?esi.~ __ aPPJ:9-vec\Jlx ______ ... 

the-Board or its designee had the course been taken after the effootive date oftlifo Decision. 

~espondent shall submit a certifioation of suecessful completion to the Board 01· its designee not 

later than 15 calendar days after successfolly completing the course, or not later than J 5 calendal' 

days after the effective date of the Decision, whichever is later, 

E. EDUCATION COURSE 

Within 60 calendar days of the effective date of this Decision, and cin ai1 annual basis 

thereafl.er, Respondent shall sub111it to the Board or its designee fo1· its prl91• approval educational 

program(s) or comse(s) which shall not be less than 40 hours per year, u11ti! such time as 

Respondent successfully completes probation. The educational program(s) or coursc(s) shall be 

aimed at co!'l'ecting any areas of dellclent practice or knowledge and shall be Category I certified, 

Jiii1ited to classroom, confore11cc, 01· seminar settings. 'rhe educational program(•) or course(s) 

shall be at Responde.Ltt7s expe11se and shall be in addition to the Continuing Medical Education 

(CME) require111ents for renewal ofllccnsure. Following the cornpletion of each comse, the 

Board 'or its designec may administer an examination to test Respondent'B knowledge of the 

conrse. Respondent shall provide proof of attendance for 6.5 hours of continuing rneclical 

oducat\on annually to the Board, of which 40 hours were in satisfaction of this condition. 

II I 

II I 

Ill 

---------- 7 
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i 
J 

F, MAlNTAJN RECORDS AND ACCESS TO RECORDS AND INVENTORIES OF 

2 CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES 

3 Respondent shall maintain a record of all controlled substances ordered, proscribed, 

4 dispensed, administered, or possessed by respondent, and any recommendation 01· approval which 

5 enables a patient or patient's primary caregiver t0 possess or cultivate marijuana for the personol 

6 medical purposes of the patient within tbe meaning of Health and Safoty Code section 11362.5, 

7 during probation, showing all the fo!Jowing; 

8 l) the name and address of patient; 

__ _JI_.... .. -~- the_(l.a:te; .. ·------· .. ·---....... ····---·-.... ---··· .. :.··----·-·-··· ........ --... ..... . .. . 

l O 3) the character and quantity of controlled substances involved; and 

11 4) the indications and diagnosis for which the contro!Jed substances we1·e furnished. 

12 Respande11t shall keep these records in a separate file or ledger;Jn chronological order. _All 

i3 

14 

15 

16 

l7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

records and any inventories of controlled substances shall be available for immediate inspection 

and copying on the premises by the Board or its designee at all times diu'ing business hours and 

shall be retained for the entire term of probation, Failure to maintain all records, to provide 

immediate aoceim to the inventory, or to make all records available fo1· immediate inspection and 

copying on the premises, Is a violation of probation. 

.0. NO TELEHEALTH OR TELEMEDICJNE 

Re•pondent shall not participate in nor pmvide telehea!th services, as defmed in Califomia 

Busi11ess and Professions Code seotion 2290;5, nor telemedicina services of any othei· type, 

'l~elelncdicine1 ag used herein, n1cnns the provision. ofrnediool se1·v1oes, in.eluding but not limftccl 

to patient examination, diagnosfs, tJ·eatment, and/or prescripdon of drugs, by any method ln whicl1 

the patient is not physically present in the same 1•oom as lkspo11de11t. 

H. NOTIFICATION 

Prior.to engaging in the practice ofm0<licine, the Re.•pondenl shall provide a u·ue copy of 

the Decision and Accusation to the Chief of Staff or the Chief Executive Officer at every hospital 

where privileges or rn<>mhernhip arn extended to Respondent, at any othe1 facility where 

Respondeul engages in the practice of mediolne, lncluding all physician aod locum tenens 
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registl'ies 01· other similar agencies, and to the Chief Executive Officer at every insurance-0a1rier 

2 which extends malpractice insurance coverage to Respondent Respondent shall submit proof of 

3 compliance to the Board or its designee within 15 calru1dar days. 

4 This condition shall apply to any_ chauge(s) in hospitals, other facilities or insurance carder. 

5 I. OBEY ALL LAWS 

6 Respo1ldent shall obey all federal, state and local laws, all rules governing the prnctice of 

7 medicine in Califomla, and remain In foll compliance with any court ordered criminal probation, 

8 payments and otlmr oJ:ders. 

9 
"···-··---------····~-~·- ·- -·- .. 

1 o Respondent shall submit quarterly declamtions under penalty of pe1jury on fonns provided 

11 by the Bomd, stating whether there·has been compliance with all the conditions ofprnbation. 

J 2 Respondent shall submit quarterly declarations JlOt later than 1 0 calendar days after the end of the. 

13 preceding quarter. 

14 IC PROBATION UNIT COMPLIANCE 

15 i. Respondent shall comply with the Board's probation unit. Respondent shall, at all times, 

16 keep the Board informed of Respondent's business and residence addresses. Changes of such 

1? addresses shall be immediately communicated in writing to the Board or it:i designco, Under 110 

18 citcunista11ce.1 shall a post office box serve as 'an address of record, except as allowed by Btrniness 

19 and l'rofesslons Code section 202l(b). 

20 ii. Respondent shall not ellgagc in the practice of medicil\e in Respot1dent's place of 

21 residence, Respondent shnll maintain a c011ont and T•nowe<l Califonua physician and surgeon's 

22 license. 

23 iii. Respondent shnll immediately infonn the Board, or its designee1 in w1·iting, of travel to 

24 at1y areas outside the jurisdiction ofCalifomia which lasts, or is contemplated. to last, more Uian 

25 30 calendar days. 

26 11 I 

27 II I 

28 /// 

9 
---------·-----~ .. ··--------------~ ---·------+ 
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1 L, INTERVIEW WITH THE BOARD OR ITS DESIONEE 

2 Respondent shall be available in person for interviews either at Respondent's place of 

3 business or at the pl'Obation 1mit office, with the Board or its designee, upon request at vadous 

4 intervals, and either with or without prior notice throughout the term of probation. 

5 M. RESIDING OR PRACTICING OUT·OF·STATE 

6 i. In the event Respondeo.I should leave the Stale of California to reside or to practice, 

7 Respondent shall notify the Board or its designee in writing 30 calendar days prior to the dates of 

8 clepaiture and return. No11·practice is defined as any period tif time exceeding 30 calendar days in 

9 which Respondent is not engaging in any activities defined in Set)tlons 2051 and 2052 of the 
- ... ··--·-····· ·-······---.. ----·-···-....-- ' ··----- ····-·· ····-·-··-·· -------·---·----.. ---·----··-

IO Business and Professions. Code .. 

11 ii. All time spent in an intensive tt·aining program outside the State of California which h<is 

12 been approved by the Board or Its designee shall be considered as tlme spent in the practice of 

13 medicine within the State. A Board·orclered suspension of practice shall not be considered as a 

14 period of non-practice. Periods of temporary or permanent residence or practice ·outsid~ 

15 Califomin will not apply to the reduction of the probationary tetm. Pel'iods·of.tcmporary or 

J 6 pennai1ent residence 01' practioe outside California wi!l l'e!ieve Respondent of the responsibility to 

17 comply with the probationary terms and co11ditions with the exception of this condition and the 

J 8 following terms and conditions of probation: Obey All Laws; Probation Unit Complitu1ce; and 

19 Cost Rccov~ry, 

20 iii. Respondent's lieense shall be antomatknllyoancelled if Respondent's periods.of 

21 temporary or permanent residence or practice outside California total two years. However, 

22 Respondent's license shall no! be cancelled IIB long as Respondent is residing and practicing 

23 medicine in another state of the United Stales and is on active probation with the medical· 

24 licensing authority of that state, in which case the two year period shall begin on (he date 

25 ,probation is completed or terminated Jn that stnre. 

26 N. FAILURE TO PRACTICE MEDICINB" CALIFORNIA RESIDENT 

27 i. 111. the event Respondent re8ides in the State of California and for any mason Respondent 

28 stops practicing medicine in California, Respondent shall notify the Board. or its dcsignee in 

10 
-----·----· .. ----~-
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writing within 30 calendat' days priol' to tl1e dates of non-practice and return to prnctice. Any 

period ofnon-prnctice wlthln Califomia, as defined in this co11dition, will not apply to the 

mduction of the probationary term nnd does not relieve Respondent of the 1·esponsibllity to 

. comply with the terms and conditions ;fprobation. Non-pmctice is defined as any perlod of time 

exceeding 30 calendar days in which Respondent is not engaging in any activities defined in 
' 

sections 2051 and 2052 of the Buslµess and Professions Code, 

· ii. All time spent in an intensive ttalning program whicl1 has been approved by·the Board 

or its designee shall be considered time spent In the practice of medicine. For purposes of U1is 

~'?_~dit!.0~1, non:.l'!actioe duet.~. a B?1!£d·ord~ed _!'_llllJ?~~siou or in .c~>mP.l)~!_qfl with an;r oth.".L ..... 

conclttion of probation, shall not be considered a period ofnon•practice. 

iii. Respondent's license shall be automatically.canceled if Respondent resides in California 

and for a total of two years, fails to engage in California in ally of ti1e activities described in 

Business and Professions Code sections 2051 and 2052. 

O. COMPLETION OF PROBATION Respondent shall comply with all financial 

obligations (e.g., cost recovery, restiMiou, probation costs) not later thai1 120 calendar days prior 

to the completion of probation. Upon successful completion ofprnb.ation, Respondent's 

ceitificate shall be flllly restored. 

P. VIOLATION OF PROBATION Failure to fully comply with any term or condition 

of probation is a violation ofprobatio11. If Respondent violates probation in any respect, the 

Board, .aft~r givillg Respondent notlce and the opporl1ll1ity to be heard, may revoke probation and 

cat'ry out j:he tlisoip!inat'y m'<le1• that was •tayed, If an Aoousatlon, Petition to Revoke Prob<1tion, 

or an lnterhn Suspension Orde1: ls filed against Respondent ~urlng probation, the Board shall have 

continuing jurisdiction until the matter is final, and. tho period of probation shall be extended 1.111til 

the matter is final. 

Q. LICENSE 'SURRENDER Following the cffootive date of this Decision, if 

Respondent ceases practicing due to t'ctlrcmeut, health 1:easons or is othe1:wise unable to satisfy 

th!J terms flnd co11ditions of probation; Respondent may request the voluntary surreJ1<ler of. 

Responde11f:'s license. The Board reserves the right to cwaluate Respondent's.request and to 

II 
-------·--------~--
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ex erclso Its dlsotetla·n whether or not to grant the roquost, or to tokQ llJ\Y other aelion doomed 

approprim and roiv;ohnblo nt1dor the circumstances. Upott.formal r&eoc.ptance of tho BUrtender1 

Respondent •hall within IS oolondar d•Y• deliver Respondent'• wollel nnd wall ccrUtioato 10 the 

Board or its doBiil!\C• and Respondont shall no longer practice modlolnc. Respondent wlli no 

lcllG•r bo subject to tho te1·ms and 00~1dltions of probation und tho surtendor ofReapondont's 

l\oonse shall bo deemed disei1>linary actioo. lfRospondont re applles for a medi~l liccnso, llie. 

appliontlon shall ho lreJJ.ted as a pctldon for roln•tatomom oro revoked certiflcale, 

···~!{-. -PROBATION .. MQNJTORINO-cosrs·-l\BJpm:llllJlltSholll>l!)'·tJre-.osls-.iswiRtod-- --· -··---:-·---·· 

with probotion monltoting each and cveryy,.rnf probation, ps d.,lgnated by U1e BO!lla, which 

may be adjuSled on an annunl basis. Sucli cosls s!Ulll be payable to the Medical Board of 

California and dellvorod to tho Board or its '""igneo no lalerthnn )anuary 31 ofoooh calendar 

yeru". Fallure 10 pay costo within 30 calundar days of tho due date Is a violation of probation. · 

ACCEP'IANCE 

I hayc ou.wfnlly J.'Qad tho above Stipulated Sett1on1e11.1 and Dlsolp10.ll.l'y Order nnd bavc fully 

dlsouosed It with my ottorney, Henry Fe111on, I uoderstand the Stlpul•tlan Md theoffect It will 

have 011 my Pliysiclan and Surawn's Certifiontc, l enter 11110 tll\a Stlpulatod Se\tlornonl and 

Disoip\inory Orclor voluntarily, knowlngly, ond lntelllgontly, and agroe to he bound by the 

l)eei•lon ruid Ortler of Iho M..,d\ooi Board ofC.llfornl•. 

DATED! 1{· (,,,_,It L ..d::::::-> ·L~ 
,DAJ>UEL K. Ci:.tAM; M.D., 
ll.ospond•nt 

l have re.od and 1\diy dlGCuSBod me terms ond aond\tlons •nd oOmr matters 

contalnad ln tbe .e.bov~ St1ptllnted Sottlun:i"nl nud DJsolpfinnry Ordor with Drude.I K, Chain, M.D. 

r Upprov~ \hi fOtill and !'H'lflle))t. 

DATED: tf'~t.5-/ l~· 

12 . _____ .._..,,,. _ ___..._.______ ----------
Sllpl-llatcd Settl<:m~n11mdDliiolplhltry 01'dcir 
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,!J!NDORSEMENT 

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order ls hereby 

respectfully submitted for ~on.1ideratlon by the Medical Board of California. 

KA ALA D. HARRIS, Attorney General 
oft 1e State of · nua, by· 

13 
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EDMLIND G, BROWN, lR. 
Attorney Ge1iernl of California 
KLJNT.IAMBBMCKAY 
Deputy Attomey General 
StateBarNo. 1408'81 

300 So. Spring Street, Suito 1702 
Los Angeles, Callfomla 900 J'3 
Telephone: (213) 576-1327 

'Facslmlle: (213) 897-9395 
E-innll: Kl!nt.MoKay@doj .oa:gov 

Attorneys for Complainant 

. BEFORE THE 
8 . MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA 
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In the Matter oflhe Accusation Against: 

DANIBL K. CHAM, M.D, 
1014 S. Marengo Aven\le, Unit 6 
Alluunbra, California 91803 

Physician' a ~ Surgeon's ·Certifioato 
No A 86714, 

Roa ond.ont 

Compfoinant allege•: 

Case No. 23-2008-192858 

ACCUSATION 

?ARTIES 

l, Linda K. Whitney (Complainant) brinwi this Accusation solely in her official capacity 

u.s tho Executive Dh·ectOr .of the Modioal Boa.rd of California ("Board11
). 

2. On or about April 14, 2004. the Board issued .Phynloiru.i'.s nnd Surgeon'B Col'tificut~ 

number A 86714 to Daniel K. Cham, M.D, ("Respondent"), The Ce1tlficate was· Jn :full force and 

ef(eat at ail tim~s relevant to the chru·ges brought herein. It will expil'e on November 30, 201 J, 

1.111] (l!)S renewed.· 

II i 
l II 

I II 

---------·-·--,-------------·-··---
ACCUSATION 

Cham, Daniel K., M.D. 5/4/16 



.i 

.!l)RJSDlQTION 

2 3. This Accusation is brought before the Board under tho authority of the following 

3 laws. All seotion references are to the Business and Professions Code ("Code") 1mless otherwise 

4 · indlca!od. 

5 

6 4, 

STATUTORY PROVISION~ 

Seotion 2227 of the Code states: 

7 . "(a) A licensee whose matter has been heard by an admin\stratlve law judge of the 

8 Mcdloal Quality Hea1'lng Pll11ol M designated in Seotion 11371 of the Oove1mnent Code, or 
---------·--

9 whose default has be~n entel'otl, and who is found guilly, or who has enteFOd into a iilijiijliiHonToi' -----------

i O disciplinary action with the division, 1 may, in accordance with 1he provlsio11s of this chapter: 

11 "(!) .Have his or her license reveked upon order of the division. 

12 "(2) Have his or hot· right to practice suspc11ded for a period not to exceed on• year upoll 

1·3 order of the division. 

14 "(3) Be placed on probation and be req\lired to pay the costs of probation monilodng upon 

l S order ofthe division. 

16 "(4) Be publicly reprimanded by the division. 

l T "(5) Have any other. action taken in relation to discipline as part of an order of probation, 

l. 8 as the division or ll11 administrative law judge may deem proper, 

19 · "(b) Any matter hoatd pnrsuaut to subdivision (a), cKoept for warning letters, medloal 

2() re~iew 01· advisory conferences, professlm1al competency exnminntlons, continuing education 

21 actlvlt!es, and oost reimbm·sernent associated tl1erewith that llJ'e ngreed to with the division and 

22 auoc.ess1\llly completed by the licen9oe, or other matters made ·confic\exitial or privileged by 

23 existing la~, is doem.od public, and sh•ll ho mode available to the public by ·the board pursuant to 

24 Section 803.l, 

~5 

26 
1 Callfornl; Busllless ond Professions Code section 2002,., 0111ended and offeotivo Jonnmy I, 2008, 

. provides th•t, unlesa otberwlso expressly vrovlderl, tho !Olm ''bom~" os used In tho Stat• Medical Pi~etice A~t (Col. 

27 
Bus. & Pr.of, Code, §§2000, et seq.) mMll8 the "Mc<llcnl Boord of·Colifornln," nud reforances to tho "Plvision of 
Mcdlct1! Quality" and "Dlv!.lon ofLlconsing" In the Act or ony ntb'1r pl'O~lslon of law shall be deemed to refer to the 
Donrd. · 

2 ___ __.;._, _______ _ 
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5, Seotlon 2228 of tho Code states: 

"The authority of the board or a division of the board or they Callfomia Board of Podlatric 

Medicine to dlscip.llne a licensee by placing him or her on probatio11 Includes, but is not limited to 

the following: 

"(a) Requiring the licensee to obtain additional professional training· 1md to pass an 

examh1atio11 upon the completion of tho training, Tho examination may be\vl'.\tten or oral, ·01· 

both, and maybe a practical or cHni~al examination, Ol' both, at the optio.n ol'the board or division 

or the administrntivo law judge. 

· ·u(b) ·xeqiiiriii[(the·liailhSee 1o·silbmifliflf completeaiagiiOstic exarruuatlon15y one or more 

physicians arid surgeons appoillted by the division. If an examinatioll is ordered, the board or 

division shall receive and consider any otller report of a complete diagnostic examination given 

by one or more physicians and surgeons. of the licensee's choice, . 

"(o) Re,ir-dcting or limiting the e<lenl, scope, 01·type ofpractice . .ofthe licensee, including 

req\liring notice to applicable palients that the licensee ls unable to perfotlll the indicated 

treatment., where appropriate. 

"(d) Providing the optJon ofaltemative community service in coses other than violations 

relating to quality of care, as defined by tlie Division of Medical Quality. 

6, Scctlon 2234 of the Code stales: 

"The Division of Medical Quality shall take.action agai11st any lioensoe who is charged with 

unprofossion•I conduct Jn addition to othe1· Pl'Ovisions of thls oiiicle, unprofessional conduct 

includes, but is not limil:ed to, the following: 

"(n) Vialatb1g or attempting to violate, dil'e<itly or indirectly, wsisting in or abetting the 

violation of, or con;-piring to vlolato any provision of this chapter [Chapter 5, the Modica! 

l'1·ootice Act), 

"(b) Gross negligence, 

"(c) Repeated negligent act>. To be repeated, there must be two or more negligent acts or 

omissions. An initial negligent act or omission followed by a separate and distinct clepart\n'e from 

the applicable stm1d.ard of care shall constitute ropeated negligent.acts. 

3· 
·------~~·----! 

ACCUSATION 

Cham, Daniel K., M.D. 5/4/16 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 
···-·-··-···-

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

I 
21 

22 
I 

23 I 
I 
I 24 i 
' ' 25 

: 26 ' 
27 

28 

"(J) Ari initial 11ogligent diagnosis followed by M aot er omission 1nedlcally appropriate 

for that nogligent diagnosis of the pationl shall conS!itute a single nogllgent act. 

"(2) When the standard of care requires a change in the diagnosis, act, or omission that 

constitutes the negligent 'aot described in paragraph (I), including, but not limited·to, a 

reevaluation of the diagnosis or a change ln treatment, and the licensee's conduct departs from the 

applicable stlllldard of cal'o, each departure constitUtes ~·separate and distinot breach oft.he 

standard of care. 

"(d) luoompetence, 

.... -- "<-;;i "f1;~·~oiniilisSfon of ~ny HCt involving dishonesty or oorruptfoiiw1ifoli1sliii0iiiantially-- -----~. 

related to the qualifications, functions, <>r duties of a physician and surgeon. 

"(f) Any action' or conduct which would have ~arranicd tlle denial of a certificate," 

7, Section 223 8 of.the Code B1ates: 

"A violation of any federal statute or federal regul atlon at any of the statutes or regulations 

of this state regulating dangerous dmgs 01· controlled substance.~ coruititutea mtprofessional 

conduct." 

8. Section 2266 of the Code states:. "The failme of a physician and suxgeon to maintain 

adequate and accurate records relating to tho provision of services to their patients co1istitutes 

. unprofessional conduct." 

JJIRST Ci\USE.JJOR DJ:SC!l'Ll'Nl!] 
(dt·oBS Negligence as to Patient S.C.") 

9. Respondent ls subject to disciplinary aetion for unp1<>fessional ~a!lduct pursuant to 

Bu~hiess and Professions Code soctiol)s 2234(b) based on his foi.ture to ex.amine S.C. before 

prescribing drugs to. him. Tile facts and circumstances are as follows; 

A. Respondent initially waiuated S.C., u J4,yeat"·old man, on Moy 7, 2008 

through Delta Health, an internet medical practice service based in Florida,. D6lta referred 

patlerits to physicians In the same B•ographic m·ea. Respondent performed a telephone 

-----·-·--
i. Each Pati.ent is referenced by initials to proteot theh' privacy. 

4 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

')8 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

I 25 

1 
26 

27 

i 28 
i 
i 

consultation witb the patient, Respondent'~ noles from Dolta Health on this visit oonsists of one 

lino, He wrote, "34 yo m lf knoo tenden1oas door rom patella fem01,al syndrome." He did not see 

this patient In person. Nonetheless, Respondent prescdbed Bydrooodone/ APAP l Ol325mg 

(Nol'co 10) #90·tablets after this phone consultatlon. 

B. Subsequently, Respondent mode another phono consultation with the patient on .lune 

9, 200&, Respondent wrote, "lf knee arthropathy sip football acl and work related mo! fiom fall 

deer ambulation 8-9/10." Respondent prescribod Norco 10 again #90 tablets. He did not see the 

patlei\t in person before or after either of these phone consultations. 

........... c:-··- Respondent prescrJbed a totiilol'62()'(losos-ofHydrocodone during thii two-month 

titM period. 

D. S .C. personally selected hydrooodone as his medication oholoe ft•om the Delta 

website. During S,C, 's phone conversation.with Respondent, Respondent did not ofter or 

recommend any 0U1er medication and Respondent did. not provide a treatment plan, 

E. S.C.' was charged a $200 consultation fee to speak wi.th R"8pondent. He sald · 

Resp.ondent spoke to him on the second coi1sultation as if he did not l<J10W him and had not 

prescribed to him in the past. The patient said Respondent did not nsk hitn 1my follow Uj) 

qu.estlons ·about how the medication had worked from the first prescription, At no time did the 

patient moet with Respondent or anyone associated with Respondent or Deltn :Health before or ,. 

after being prescribed the hydrocodone, 

1,0, Rospo11dent's preso1iption of oontrolled •nd dm1ge.1·m1nlrugs without any 

examh;at\on Ol' treatme11t plan constitutes gross 110gl!genoc within the meaning of Code seetioll 

2234(b). 

SEQQND CAUSE h'OR PlSCQ'X,fNE 
(Repeated Negligent Acts as to Patient S,C.) 

11. Respondent is subje<1t to disciplinary action fo;.repeatod neg\'igent aot.8 purs11ant to 

Business and Professions Code section 2234(c) \rnsetl on the foots set forth above, 

5 
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I.lllRD CAUSE FOB DlSCJl'LINE 
(Record Keeping as to Patient S. C.) 

12. . Respondent t8 subject to d!scipllnary action for unprofessional conduct pursuant to 

Business and Profossions Code sectio11 2266 due to his fallul'e to maintain adequate and accurate 

1·eco1·ds relating to the pwvisiop of services to Patient S. C., based on the facts set forth in tbe First 

Cause for Discipline. 

·····-·-···-·--········-···--·--·I---
FOURTH CAUSE !i'OR DlSCIPLINE 

----.~--------···(Qr9~s,.Negj\gence as to Patient P.D.3) 
-·-----~··------·---·------

9 

10 13. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action for unprofessional o.onduct pursuantto 

lJ 
Business and Profosslons ·Code sections 2234(b) based on his failure to .examine P.D. before 

12 . prescribing drugs to her, and Rospoti.dent's further fllilure to develop a treatment plilll or 

1 > otherwise follow up with her. Tho facts and cil'C\unstances are as follows: 

14 A. Respondent first saw P.D., a 43-yoru·-o!d wom!lll, Q)l a bome visit on Marcl1 19, 2008. 

I l thwush the Delta Healtl1 program. Respondent used .his New lmn~e Clinic preprinted progr01Js 

l 6 notes to write up this visit. The patient's chief complaints were headacl1e and neck pain. 

1? Rospondeat described the headaches as bandlike end what appears to be "occipital". The!'eis no 

18 other histo1·y for the neck pain. 

l 9 B. Thus, foi• the head"che ru1d the neck pain., !hero is no other history documented as to 

20 

2\ 

the severity of the symptoms, wbcn they startecl, how ofte11 the patient experienced tho symptoms, 

what mll.do the headaches or neck pain better, what madO them worse, what associated symptoms 

22 the pati~nt bad, what workup was pe1fonned in tbe past for thr..in, what consultations, if any were 

23 done for them. 

24 C. On the physical exam, no vital signs were recorded. R<lspondontchecked off that he 

25 

26 

21 

28 

performed a general appeanmce, chest, cardiovascular and &')line exam. Ti1e assessment was 

cervical spasm secondary to another ailment, headache" occipltal, alld GAD (generalized 1U1xiety 

---~---··~--.---

3 Each Patient is referenced by in.itials to protect their privacy. 

6 
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disotdor). The plan WILi dlet/fluldlexeroiso/bed rest Vioe>dln, Valium, and behavior modification.· 

2 Th• patient was to RTC (l'Oturn to olinlo) In 3 months and othol' 1·ecommendatlons were 

3 11observation 11
' and "continuing present management. 11 

• 

4 D. Subsequently, Respondent made ,qeven phone consultations through Dell• Health with 

s this patient on a monthly basis over the ensu.ing seven months. None of these phone oonsulta!ious 

6 were followed up by a faoe-to•faoe vlsit, and Respondei1t's notes woi·e minimal. None contained 

'I a medlcally sufficient analysis of the patlerrt's subjective complaint, objective observation, 

8 analysis or plan. 

·-·-·--·--·----- 9 --·E-:-·- -After eacii.~'i"iliese-pholleconsuliatfo1!i, Respondent would pre.•cribe the )iiiiienC--

10 APAP/Hydrocodonc BJtartrato.(VicodinES) #90 tablets. Jn addition, after some of tho phone 

1J con•ultations, Respondent would also prescribe diazepam (VaJ.ium) l 0 mg #60. In total, 

12 Re.9pondent prescribed Vicodin BS #90 on nine separate occasions and Valium #60 on tlU'ee 

13 ocoaslons over this app,oximately seven month period. 

14 F, The vast mojol'ity o.f the progress n~tes Respondent did make contai!i only ono or two 

15 lh1os of •Ubjeotive history. There are typically no other descriptors of t.b.o patient's symptoms. The 

16 assessments were usually "arth.ropnlhy", "spasm", "anx!oty", or simlfar diagnosis. The plan was 

17 typically "diet fluid exorcise" or 01i1n (oontlnuc proseni management) or "slliiss maungeme~t 

18 lechnique." Respondent did not document tlrnt 11• rnfiJled Vicodin ES or Valium ou·any of these 

19 phone consultations. 

20 14, There Was •n o<tremc deparluro· from the standard of oar• d\le tO o>icerrsivo 

21 presoribing of Vioodln ES and Valium without an ongoing good fruthmedlcal hiatory ond 

iz t!pdated Informed consent, Respmident failed to porfor.m this duty for this patient. No other 

7,3 significant frealment modalities were rendered. No addftlonal workup was rendered, and no 

24 refcnals for consultations wore accomplished for tliis patient who was experiencing chronic pain. 

25 111 

26 I If 

27 111 

28 / // 

7 
---·--------~·---·----
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2 J 5, Respondent is subject to disol1iHnary action few ropeated negligent aots pursuont to 

· 3 Business and Professions Code sectiotl 2234(c) based 011 the facts set forth above. 

4 

5 

6 

SlX'l'fl CAUSE FOR DJSCIPLINE 
(Record Keeping as to Patient P.D.) · 

16. Reil)londent is subject to disoipllnary aotion for unprofessional conduct pursuant to 

7 Business and Prof~sions Code seotlon 2266 due to his failure to maJ.ntain adeqiiate and nco111ate 
. ' 

8 records relating to the provision of sorvices io Patient P.D., based on the facts set forth Jn the Ffrst 

9 Cause for Discipline, 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

SEVENTH CAUSE k:ORPISCIP1"1NJJ; 
(Gross Negligence as to l'atient K.D. 4) 

17. Respondent is subjeot to disciplhia1y action for unprofessional conduotpursuant to 

Husiuess and Professions Code sections 2234(b) based on his failure to examine K.D. before 

prescribing drugs to her, and .Respondelll's further failure to develop a lteatment plan 01· 

otherwise follow up with her. The facts and ciroumstunces are as follows: 

16 .A. K.D. is a 29 .. yeal'-old woman; Res11ondent initially met her through a phone 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

cons11ltation on. a refoual from Delta H\llllth on March 12, 2008. RespondonVs notes dooumentiug 

this phone coooultation consist of him writing, "The.patient understatJ.<ls tho analgesic properties 

of this mcdioati?n aml is l'equesting to continue this medication for Jialn control." He p1·escribed 

AF AP/Hydrocodo.oe Bltartratc '15017.5 (Vicodin BS), However, no faoort~~faQo visit or physical 

extuninQHon was p~rfor.roed bofore or aftt'lr th.is phone consultation. lt was discovered laf.m- that 

'22 . the patient was unable to fill the order d11e 1o probioms with the p1escription. 

23 I II 

24 Ill 

25 II I 

26 

27 

28 
~ Each Patient is !'eforenced by initials to p1·otect ·their privncy. 

.g 
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B. On April 14, 2008, Respondent had another phone oonsultnli on wlth the patient 

tht·ough Delta Heall:h. Respondent~ uoteB contain tho one line stalell)ent, "rl tn\i steroid inj." 

Respondent did not see the patient In person fol'this phoneoo1m1ltation. However, Respondent 

· prescdbed AP AP/Hydrooodone Bi!IJJ'll'ate ? 5017 .5 (Vioodin ES) #60 afterward. 

C. On May 13, 2008, Respondent perfoimed another phone consultation wilh th~ patient. 

Respondent's notes from fais visit include the following. "29 frt lmj sip mva 61 IO.lltd neok' 

jawlbie endometriosls." Respondent pl'Osoribed another ooui•se ofViood!n ES #60 based on this 

phone consultation. No face-to-faoe visit occurred. 

_ .. -·· · D;· ·· K.D;was p'i'esorllled 12o·Hydrowdmm-t<Y1lrtspatte1'1!1WorITTwo·umntlrpel'loa;c-SITe-:·--·-··· .. 

also received preso1·lptions from aliler physicians, and used 16 separate phnnnaolo,, to dispense 

her medication. 

E. Respondent never at any time suggested an alternative medication or treatment fo1· her 

ailment. He <lid not discuss a treatment plan wlth K.D. Whon'Respondent spoke with her 011 the 

telephotie, he did not acknowledge knowlng who she was, did not aoknowledge previousiy 

prescribing medication, and did no! ask her how the medication was wo1·king. 

F. Respondent also repeatedly instructed the patient to bllOk date documents as of Mnroh 

12, 2008, (the date of the initial phone consultation through Pelta Health soven months eal'iier). 

These four dooume)lts were imprinted with Respondent's other pra~tlce, "New Imago Clinic," and 

were an "Informed Consent to T:rcat!nent ru1d Care", "Review of Systems", "Patient Pewonal 

lnfol'matioo'', and "HIPAA Notice of Priv•oy Practices". A• instructed by ites11ondenl, although 

the patient signed tho doou111ents on October 29, 2008, she back dated lhe documents to Marcli 

l2, 2008. 

l B, There was an ox!rcme departm·e from the sta11dard of oaro due t;, the multiple 

instances of prescribing a dangerous drug, VioocHn ES, without· a good faith medical examination 

after 0011<l•\ctl11g throe s~purate phone 0011.1.ultations. The standard of oaro requll'\ls un appropriate 

history, physical examination, and medical analysis be performed before p1'escriptlo11 of 

medications, which here included dangerous· and controlled substa11oes. 

II I 

9 ' 
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Elf}B]'H Ct}USE FOR DISClP!:tN'E 
(Dishonc,qty as to Patient K.D.) 

1.9. Respondent Is subject to disciplinary action for unprofessional oonduot pursuantto 

Business and Profession.1 Code sections 2234(e) based on hls unannounced ·appearnnce at the 

house ofK.D, to induce her1o asalst him in oomtnitting fraud by backdating documents. The 

facts and oir.cumatanoes are as follows: 

7 A. It is the standard of care wh"'1 a physician makes home visits to schedule an 

B appointme11t or lnfm:m the patient before the visit occurs. lt is also the stendard of care when 
.... ··--·-----------·-·--· '. ---·---·,·-·~-------·~-·· ····-----·---···---·-· .. ·-----·--·-· 

9 making home visits to conduct tbem at an appropriate thne unle$.'J there is all extenuating 

l 0 oircurnstanoe that requires such. 

11 B. More than five months ·after Respondent conducted his last phone co"sultat!on with 

12 K.D., ho made ,an unscbeduled and umumouncod home visit on this patient on October 28, 2009 

13 at 11 :00 PM, Respondent. went to the patient's home in an attempt to get her to sign fol'ms. This 

14 patlent had never met Respondent in person so she would 11ot be able to recognize or cett!fy that 

15 this was indeed a doctor coming to hor home late at night. 

l 6 20. Such oond11ct was llll exn·eme departure from the standard of care d11e to 

l T ·unprofessional conduct and dishonesty by going to a patient's home unu.tmounced at an 

18 exeeptionolly Me hou1· to get a patient to slgn forms fo1• a fmudulent purpose, especially when he 

19 b.~d ncvor r)let the patient before and had last con\aoted her more than five months pi:evlously 

20 solely by telophoi1e. 

2.-1 

22 

23 

NlN'l)'l CAUS.lH F.DR PlSCJJ'LlNJL 
(D'ishonosty agjo Patient KD.) 

7.4 21. Respondent is subject to dlscipllnnry notion for unprofesslonai conduct p\lrsuont to 

25 Business and Ptofesslons Code sections 2234(c) based on his fraudulently preparing documents 

?.6 

27 

?.8 

which falselylndioatcd that he had llersonally examined K.D. The factll arid cirouimrtances ate~s 

follows: 

10 
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A. lt is the standard of care for physicians lo be honest when conducting his medical 

'./; praotloe and to be honest with his documenM!on. Respondent Wl'Ote a progre..s not.e dated Match 

3 12, 2008 where he records he saw thlo patient on that dato, O,n this progress note, Respondent 

4. records tho ·chief complaints were "Rt. TMJ", soine ll!eglblo writing, adju1rtment disorder, and 

s GERD. Respondent documents that he performed a physical ex!llJlinatlon and he check~d off that 

6 be performed an eKam of the patient's General Appearnnce, lnteg11ment, w1d "I-lBBNT''. He 

7 checked off that those Bystems were WNL (within uormal llmils). Bis plan was "diet fluid 

8 exerci•e, Vlcoditl, physical thompy consult", and· another plan that ls !lleg!ble. However, In faot 

.......... -Respondent never m~tf<:D.·;~; ~x;;;;:;lr1od her.· ·n1;notes .;;,~fta;;d~i~nt,'~d prepared ~give ._ .. .,_._,,_ 9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

2Z 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

the false impression that Respondent had complied with his obligations as a physician, when in 

fact he had not. 

22. Falsifying records lo appear as lftho physician had made a face-to ·face visit and 

performed a physical exami.nation of K.D. was dishonest and an extreme depm:ture from the 

standmd of care, 

·.TENTH CAUSE FQR DXSCIPLINE 
(Repeated Negligent Acts as to Patre1Jt !CD,) 

23. Rcspondeut is subject to disciplinary aotion forrepeated negligent acts pursunnt to 

.Buolness and l'rofossions Code •ection 2Z34(c) based on the facts set fortli 11bove. 

ru,~H CAUSE F03 ))ISCil'L!l:fil 
(Record Keeping aa to Patient K.D,). 

24, Respondent is •Ubjoct to disciplinw·y action fur uuprofessional conditct purs1mnt to 
. . 

BusinesB and Profosslons Code aoot!on 2266 due to bis iitllure to n~aint•ln odcqua'le and ooouratc 

records relating to the provision.of se1·vioes to Patient K.D., bosed on tho fucts set forth above. 

Ill 
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II I 

ll 
ACCUSATION 

Cham, Daniel K., M.D. 5/4116 



T)YJLLIITH rrAUSE l!'Oll DISC{PL~NE 
(Qros;1 Noglgcnco os t<.> Patient RX.) 

2 25. Respondent is subject io disciplinary action for unprofessional conduct pmsuant to 

3 Business and Professlons Cotle sections 2234(b) b~sed on his faiJul'e to examine R.K.. boforo. 

4 prescribing drugs lo heJ:, ll.lld Respondon{s fm1hor fallut•e-to develop a ti·catmont plan or . ' 

otherwise follow up with her. The fnot• and ciroumatanaes are as follows: 

6 A. Respondent fh~t evaluated R.K., a 49-year-old woman, by phoPe cons\tltation 

7 through Delta Heaith, 011 Match 20, 20Q8. Responde11!'• notes indicote."49.yo f J bp left sciatic 

8 spasm S yrs 8/1 o. "No other Iuformatlon was written . 

... ............ ·-· .......... · 9- ----13~- Base<fsolely on this telephone conversation, Re.pondent prescrioeo ......... ---···- --·-·- -·-·-·-·· 

10 Hydi:ocodone/APAP 10/325 mg (Generic Noico l 0) 1190 tablets, Respondent did not see this 

11 patient faco-to-fnoe. 

J 2 C. Subsequently, Respo11de11t J1ad five additional phone consultations with this patie.11t 

13 on April 17, 2008, May 29, 2008, June 27, 2008, Ju!y28, 2008, l\lld September 2, 2008. On each, 

I 4 'Respondent wrote one Jlne notes to document tho visit, and wiili t'i.e ·exception of the September 

15 conversation, on each of these phone consultations, Respondent prescribed Norco IO #90. 

16 Respondent did not see the patient Jn pm~on after any of those phone consh!Mions. 

17 D, The additional. p~ogress notes of' his phone consultations wJth fuis patient on 

18 Respondent's personal computer contain about 2 lines, 1nostly listing the sovodty of the back pain 

l 9 such as 8(10, 

20 E.. At no time did 'Respondent BUgge•t any other type ofu·catment 6r suggest a treatment 

21 plan, nor did the patient have oontaotwith Respondent between the oonsultation and ordering 

22 · modicotion. 

?,1 F, Two months after the Modica! Board interview with thfa patient, Respondent made 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

his first home vlsi'I with this patient 011 November 4, 2008. Even tbeu, his notes were inadequate, 

and did not contain vital signs. Re,,pondcnt ·nonetheless prescribed Vicodin. 

II 

.1 Each Patient is referenced by initials to protect their privacy, 
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G. Ii is the stamfard of oare to preso.ribo medications, Including oon!rolled substanoes, 

2 ufter an appropriate histo1•y, physioul exiuni11£t~ion, and medical indication have been perforined. 

3 Furthem;ore, ii is the standard of oare when prescribing oonb'o!Jed substances on a cluonio basis 

4 that an 011gol11g histoxy and physical exiiinii1ation, treatment plan, periodic review of the course of 

5 pain treatment, consultations, proper reoord keeping, and iui infol'll:l.ed consent be documented 

6 durlug the cours~ of care. 

7 26. There was an extreme departure from the ste.ndard of care due to prescribing a 

8 controlled substance, Norco 10, without prlol' examination of the patient, Furthermore, thel'e was 

-----· -.. - .. 9 -iiii'exi1;en:;•-d-eparturefromiiio iii:aiidaririif'care'Ciue'fo-ei"oeiiSfve"jij;e9(,tjbjng'ofdrugs without 

1 O proper justification. 

l j 

12 

13 · · 27. · Roopondent is subject to disolplinai')' action fol' repeated negligent acts pursuant to 

14 Busjness all.d P1'ofessions Code section 2234(0) .based on the facts set forth" above, 

15 

16 
li'QIJR'.' EN H CAUSE llOR DISCIPLINE 

(Record Keeping as to otie11t R,K,) 

17 28. Respondent is subject to dlsclpllnary action for unprofessional conduct pitrnuant to 
. 

18 . Bus)ness and Professions Code section 2266 due to hia faU1fre to maintain adequate and accurate 

19 records relating to the provision of services to Patiout R.K. based on the facts set forth above, 

20 Respondent's record keeping wns·dcfiolont.; there was• luck of subj octive ond no physical ·oxain 

21 dooumenta.tlon. There was inadequate documentntion .of the 8$Besament/pla,n. £01• n patient ·who 

22 wns ha'Vlng oht·oxtlc b•wK pain. Sin~ this patient was taking a si~nlrica11t aii\.ouni of contr~lled . 

23 substnncos n11d she had persistent symptoms, documentation was required to· detnil the nature of 

24 'the patienfs symptoms, what made her ~ymptoms impt·ove or get worne. There should have been 

25 more information written as to Whal furlher action Rellpoudent w~s going to take ht this patient, 

26 More documentation was requlred to jmtify continuing to ptoscribe Norco. 

27 fl I 

28 

13 
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2 29. Respondont is sul>joot to disciplinary action fol' uupl'ofessional conduct purouant to 

3 Business and Professions Code s~ctlo11s 2234(b) ba,qed 011 his failnl'e to e1141nine S.L. before 

4 p!'escrlbing drugs to him, and R.eapondont's further failure to develop a t1'eatmont'plan or 

5 otherwise follow up with him, TM facts and circumstances are as follows: 

6 A. Dr. Cham first saw S.L., a 55-year-old male, on a refemtl from Delta Health. 

7 Respondent made a ·homo visit for the patient on March 3, 2008 using his pre-printed New Image 

R Clinic progress notes, The patient's chief complaint was LBP{low baok pain), The sevedty of the 

... · .... --·---.. _ ...... ·9·- ·: pain ·wmrrated-oir!t/'l·O~<.Jthurd5suriptol'S'Uf'the· bl!ck paininulud~ IIl!Otatlon tlla1ll]l]l0!\l'S1osay-· .......... -· · 

10 "radiates l O rlght flank"; however, the writing is illegible. There are no other descriptors of the 

11 back pain problem. There fa no othex history written regarding tho nature of the back pa.in, There 

12 is nothing written regarding how. Jong the patient expexlenced back paln, what facloi·s made it 

13 worse, what made It better, what work-up the patienth<td in the past, and what treatments for the 

J 4 back pain the patient had utllized. 

1.5 B. Tbe physical oxatn documented a spine exam, ·Respondent oheoked olftenderness in 

16 the .lumbar spine. The !UlseBsme11t was "LBl'/OA and D/D". Tho plan was clict/fluld/exercisc aad 

1 7 Lorcet 10165.0 #90 was prescribed, Respondent checke~ the box fol' the patient to 1·etur1> in 3 

18 month8. 

l 9 C. After this initial visit, Roopondent had eight more encounters with the patient during. a 

ZO seven month period.; 111J wero phone conmltatlonR witho<rt m1y addWonal face-to-face visits. All · 

21 of the phone consnllatlons dealt with the low back pain. Rooporident only wrote one line progress 

22 notes In tho medical 1·ocords for each ofhfo Dolt.1;Ienlth phone consultations. He did not ask (or 

23 clieck) wbcthol' tho patient .wfrn obtaining drugs from ai1other physician, !Ind· in foot, the pntiont 

24 . was getting concurrent prescdptions of AP AP/Hydrocodonc Bitnrtrate from oilier physioions at 

25 Kaiser dtaing this time period. While Respondent had prescribed 720 Lor&.its total (8 X 1190), ti1e 

1.6 

27 

28 
-·~Each Patient is referenced by initials to protect their privacy. 
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2 

3 

4 

\" 5 

6 

7 

8 
-----·--··-··---····-·--·9. 

10 

1 l 

12 

13 

14 

15 

)6 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2.5 

I 26 ' 1 
I 27 
; 
I 

28 

patien.1 roc>eived mi additional 530 opin10 btbleti from two other physicians during this same time 

period. 

D. Rosponden1 nlso kept progress notes on his own pel'sonal computer regatdlng his 

phone oonaultatlons with tl1is patient. All of the noles contain a one to two line subjeotivo 

essentially listing the severity of the patient's ptlin. The patient's pa.in scale during this time period 

1•m1god from 3-9/1 O. Oocaslo11ally, Respondent wo~ld write other descriptors such as "Long 

driving between wot-k, Poor postul'e." or "Deer. Focus.'. Pam· sleep,'' For the assessment, 

Respondent would write "lumbar did" or would pul nothing down. For his plan, he would 

typrCally wrltti''dfoffiui(faxiirolseil" iiia"opm\ ooiitiiliie"prosent management) without 

(looumenting that he 0011tlnuod to presorlbe Lo1'cet. 

E. It is .the standard of care to prescribe medications, including contc'(l\led substances, 

a:lter IUl appropriate histol'y, physical examination, and mr.dioal ind!oat!on have been performed. 

Furthermore, it is the standard of care when pJ·eacribing controlled substam.es on a chronic b.Si.1 

that an ongoillg histo1y and physical exnmination, treatment plan, peJ"iodio r<ivlew of tho oourse of 

JlaJn treatment, consultations, proper record keeping, and an informed consent be documented 

du>:ing the courso of care. 

30. There was an extteinc departure from !he standard of care duo to excessive 

pl'escribing ofLorcet 6501J 0, When prescr\bing oontrolied subsUmces suclias Lorcet, there 

noods to he an ~ngolng good faiU1 medical history and physical exami.1iation. Thorn was a 

•ignificon.t deficiency o'f an 011golng good faith medical history and physical examination. 

Respondent saw this patient once in\tlally, b11tfaiied to sea this patient again in person over a 

seven montb time period whero he made eJgbt phone consultatious without performing ony 

additional physical exmninations but oontinued to prescribe Lorcet on a monthly basis, When 
' 

prescribing controllod o\lbstances on a regular basis, there mn.~t be an updated informed consent 

· regm·ding lhe risks mid benefits of continuing the opiate medication. Moreover, there needs to be 

a inonilorlng of the progress of the patient and docuinenlation as to· the efficacy of the 

medlcations .. RespondCJJt failed to perform these duties for this patient. No other tl'eutniont. 

15 
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I 
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I 
I 
I 
' I 
I 
I 
I 
l 

i 
j 
I 
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modalities were rendered. ·No additional workup was i·endered, And no refea-als for consultations 

2 . were rnade. 

-----··"-----···--·-·· 

, 
4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

·r 
10 

l l 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

·25 

26 

27 

28 

31. 

~IXTJi:!£NTH CA,VSE FOR DISClPLIN~. 
(Record Keeping as to Palie11t S.L.) 

Re•pondelll ls subject to disciplinary act!on fol' unpmfesslollal i>onduc1 pursuant to 

Business and Professions Code section 2266 due to his failure to maintain a.de,quate and accurate 

teco1'<1s relating t<> 1he provision of set-vices to Patient S .L, based on the following, as well as the 

facts sel forth above, 

--- · .. A ...... "kespoi1den1'arocord keeping was deflofoiii; "tiicxe was a lack of subjective and no 

physical ~x.am tlocumentatfon, There was inadequate documentation of th• •ssessment/p!an for a 

patient who was hoving chronic back pain. Since this patient was taking a significant amount of 

controlled .rnbstances and she had persistent symptoms, dooumontatlon was required to detail tho 

natui~ of tho patient'• symptoms, what made her symptoms impr6)1e ot" gel worse. There should 

. have been mo1·e information written .., to what futthet• action Respondent was going to take in 

this patient. More docurnentatlon was req1tlwd to justify oontinulng to prescribe Norco. 

B. The standard ofprnctice in California Is to maintain adequate medic~[ records, In the 

Delta Hell.Ith Medical Records, Respondci1t's notes only consist of on~ lino desoi·iptors of all of 

his nine photio consultation8. H.espondent also ke1>t additional p!'og1·0~• notes on his pot·sonal 

computer, These notes also hiclude only one 01 two lines on the subjective (hist<iry) po11ion and 

the NP portion crf.tht} progress note·l~speotively. Mo.al of the progress notes ln tho aubjoctive 

section only indicate to what severity the low back pain was, For the assessment, Respondent 

would wdt.e "lumba1· <ljd" or would put nolhlng down. For his plan, he would typically write "'diet 

fluid exeroiso" and cpm (continue present management) without documel)t\ug that he contilrned to 

prescribe Lot•cet A,s a result, Respondent's record keeping of this patient's medical problems wau 

deficient, 

C. There Wll.'l a Jack ofsubjcmtive and no physical exam documentation. There was a 

deficiency in documentation of the ussesstnent/pla11 for a patient who was havillg chronic and 

persistent low back pain. Since this patient was taking n significant amount of controlled 

16 
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substances and he bad pei·sistcnt symptoms, 1here should have beon mo1·e dooumontat!o11 to detail 

2 the nnture of the potlent's symptoms, what made his symptoms worae ,,,. better, elc, There should 

3 have been more detail as to wba! furthel' action Respondent was going to take in this patient 

4 There should have been more documentation to justify continually presmibing high amot10ts of 

5 Lorcct. 

6 32. There was an extreme deporture from tho standard of care for failure to provide 

7 adequate documentatiori in a patient who was continually preBcdbed Loroet 650110 011 n monthly 

8 basis. 
--·-·"···~--~ ......... ' . ••;·-·-··· --·-~----·--·-·-·------~--·---'------ ·····-···" -· --·-··-···_;___,, ___ _ 

9 

10 PRAYER 

11 WHEREFORE, Comphunant requests that a hearlng. be held on the matters herein alleged, 

12 . and that following the hearing, the Board issue a decision: 

13 1. Revoldng or suspendingPhysioi•n's & Surgeon's Cet'lificate No. A86714, lss\1ed to 

14 Dar!Lel K. Cham, M.D.; 

15 2. Revoldns, suspending or denying approval of his authority to supervise physician 

16 11ssistunts, pursuant to Section 3527 of the Code; 

17 3. J.fplaced on probation, ordering Wm to pay the costs of pr 

18 4. Taking sucli qtber and fiuther action as d;eme 1ly;><9?"' U"}'< 

1.9 DATED: Septemb."_::_29, 2010_,, 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

1.5 

26 

27 

28 
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LJNDA I<:. WHf ,y, 
BxooutJve Dire or1 

Medical Board of California;· --­
Cotnplainru1t 
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